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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ITEHES

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”) of China
Shenghai Food Holdings Company Limited BT &R Mz AR
28] (the “"Company”), | am pleased to present our first annual
report following the successful listing of the Company on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 18 July 2017. This report covers the period for the
year ended 31 December 2017.

AN IMPORTANT MILESTONE

The Group has established a solid foundation in its dried seafood
business since inception in 2005. With the continuous efforts of
our brilliant team of management and staff, the Company sought
new growth opportunities through the initial public offering in July
2017, which received favourable market response and signified
a great encouragement to us. It proves that our past effort and
performance have been well-recognised, and that investors are
confident in our prospects.

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year under review, the Group’s turnover increased to
approximately RMB644.4 million, representing an increase of
approximately 37.7% in comparison to that of 2016, while profit
attributable to owners of the Company increased to approximately
RMB70.2 million, representing an increase of approximately 14.8%
as compared to that of 2016.

The turnover of the Group's dried seafood products for 2017
was approximately RMB327.9 million, representing an increase
of approximately RMB72.1 million or approximately 28.2% as
compared to that of approximately RMB255.8 million in 2016.
The turnover of the Group's algae and fungi products for 2017
was approximately RMB257.2 million, representing an increase
of approximately RMB86.4 million or approximately 50.6% as
compared to approximately RMB170.8 million in 2016. During the
year, the Group has secured 17 new customers which contributed
approximately RMB40.8 million to the Group's turnover in 2017.

OUTLOOK

The Group aspired to strengthen its position in the seafood and
algae industries in China. To achieve this goal, the Group will
continue to: i) enhance our existing customer relationships in
existing and new markets; ii) further diversify and increase our
sales and promotion efforts; iii) enhance our packaging capabilities
to address customer demands and improve quality control;
and iv) source, package and market new products that cater to
changing consumer preferences. On 18 July 2017, the Group has
successfully listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
and raised approximately HK$123.3 million for the Group future
development. The Group believed it is well positioned and
equipped to capture the opportunities in the products and algae
industries in China.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EITEHEE

We have started the construction of our online shop on Tmall
in December 2017 and have recruited staff in operations,
graphic design and promotion. We will invest online advertising
resources to expand and enhance brand awareness and attract
target customers in accordance to our plan. In the meantime, the
Company has also leased logistics warehouses in Chengdu and
Tianjin respectively, with a total leased warehouse area of 2,600
square meters. The installation of cold storage equipment within
such warehouses has been started. Recruitment of warehouse
management and promotion staff are expected to commence
by the second quarter of 2018, and advertising campaigns will
be launched in the Northern and Central-Western China regions
after the warehouses are officially put into use in mid-2018. In
respect of the plan on the construction of new factory, we are
still in negotiation in relation to the matters on the purchasing of
land. We will actively push on the process in order to kick-off the
construction of factory as soon as practicable. The acquisition of
new packaging equipment and establishment of the quality control
and testing center will follow upon completion of the construction
of the new factory.

APPRECIATION

Last but not least, | would like to take this opportunity to extend my
sincere gratitude to all fellow Directors, management and our staff
for their dedication and contribution to our Group’s development.
| would also like to thank our shareholders and business partners
for their valuable support. We will continue to make great efforts
to explore and tap into new opportunities, and strive to bring
maximum return to our shareholders.

China Shenghai Food Holdings Company Limited
Liu Rongru

Chairman and Executive Director

Xiamen, the PRC, 29 March 2018
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEREREEERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu Rongru (2128840) (“Mr. Liu"), aged 50, is our Executive
Director and the chairman of our Board and is primarily responsible
for development, positioning and strategy planning of our Group.
Mr. Liu is the founder of our Group. He is currently a director
of all subsidiaries of our Group. He is also a member of our
Remuneration Committee and the chairman of our Nomination
Committee.

In the earlier period of his career, Mr. Liu worked at Xiamen
Shipping Trading Limited (EFTE BB BMR A7) in China from
August 1990 to August 1996, a company principally engaged in
shipping and trading, where he was primarily responsible for ship
steering and piloting. In October 1996, Mr. Liu started his own
business in trading marine product where he was primarily in
charge of the general operation of the business which allowed
him to input his trading experience into Xiamen Wofan upon its
establishment in July 2005.

Mr. Liu attended a course entitled “Contemporary CEOs' Advance
Course GRRR{PHEBHSHIFHEI) " from October 2010 to October
2011 at the School of Continuing Education, Tsinghua University
(EEABUEEHE ZP). Mr. Liu has been appointed a member
of the 7th Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
at Xiamen Huli district (EFIMHERECEBHZE) since
November 2011 and a member of the China Democratic National
Construction Association (FERFEZBE @€ &) since November
2010. Mr. Liu had also been appointed the first vice president of
the Association for New Social Stratum of Xiamen Huli district
(EFfHEEE Rt eREALEESZE R) in December
2009, the executive committee of the 12th Xiamen Federation of
Commerce of Chamber (EFfTT TR (AFE) F+ 2L SH
Z) in December 2011, the standing committee member of the 5th
Xiamen Huli district Federation of Commerce of Chamber (EF9H
MERTEE () SLEREFEHHKIESE) in April 2012 and the
supervisor of the third division of the Xiamen Municipal Bureau of
Quality and Technical Supervision (EffTTE 2R MEERRE =25
TREEE) in April 2015.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEREREEERE

Mr. Jiang Dehua (/2%) (“Mr. Jiang”), aged 40, is our Executive
Director and the chief executive officer of our Group. He is primarily
responsible for business development, marketing strategy, sales
management and strategic planning of our Group. Mr. Jiang joined
our Group in October 2010 and was appointed as the assistant to
the chairman and the deputy general manager of Xiamen Wofan in
October 2010.

Mr. Jiang has spent over 10 years in the media and advertising
industry and has extensive experience in managing business
operations. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Jiang was employed by
the Shanghai branch of the Guangzhou Bates Advertising Company
Ltd. (EMERE (FE=E) BEBERAF LEEHAF]) as an assistant
director of strategic planning primarily responsible for developing
marketing strategies for various car models from July 1999 to
August 2003. Mr. Jiang was then employed by the New Handsome
Joint Advertising Company Ltd. (\8EFEEESAR A A]) as the
director of strategic planning from January 2004 to September
2010.

Mr. Lin Jiangtang (FK)I%) (“Mr. Lin"), aged 34, is our Executive
Director and is primarily responsible for supervising legal related
matters of our Group. Mr. Lin possesses extensive experience in
the legal field and he joined our Group in November 2015.

Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Lin was employed by the TDK
Xiamen Company Ltd. from March 2006 to May 2008, he was then
employed by TPK Touch Solutions (Xiamen) Inc. as a legal officer
from June 2008 to June 2015. Mr. Lin graduated with a bachelor
degree in law from the China University of Mining and Technology
in July 2005. Mr. Lin then subsequently passed the National
Judiciary Examination in February 2009.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Huang Xingluan (E&%) ("Mr. Huang”), aged 43, was
appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director on 22 June
2017. Mr. Huang is also a member of our Audit Committee, our
Remuneration Committee and our Nomination Committee. Mr.
Huang graduated from the Xiamen University with a Master degree
in Management in June 2001 and a doctoral degree in Finance in
June 2009. Subsequent to his obtaining of the master degree, Mr.
Huang was employed by the Xiamen University as an assistant
professor of business management in August 2001, where he was
later promoted as an associate professor of business management
in August 2009. Since March 2013, Mr. Huang has served as
the associate director of the Faculty of Financial Management at
the School of Management of Xiamen University. Mr. Huang is
currently an independent non-executive director of Fujian Longma
Environmental Sanitation Equipment Co., Ltd ({825 SIRAEEHR
3 ABR AR, which is listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock
code: SHA: 603686); China United Travel Co., Ltd (BjREl& A5
BBRAF]), which is listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock
code: SHA: 600358) and Xiamen Kingdomway Group Company
Limited (EFI2EREBERMHBR A, which is listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: SZSE: 002626).
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEREREEERE

Mr. Liu Dajin (2| X3#), aged 52, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director on 22 June 2017. Mr. Liu Dajin is also a
member of our Audit Committee, our Remuneration Committee
and our Nomination Committee. Mr. Liu Dajin has been a practising
member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants
since November 1996. Mr. Liu Dajin graduated with a bachelor
degree in economics (major in accounting) from the Central
University of Finance and Economics (FFREF4E K E) (originally
named Central Institute of Finance and Banking (FFREf & R 22
Fr)) in June 1989. He then obtained a postgraduate qualification
from the Xiamen University Postgraduate School in September
1992. Mr. Liu Dajin worked as a teaching assistant at the Jimei
Finance and Economics School (52X 4K (currently known
as: Finance & Economics Institute, Jimei University 53 A2 84
ZERT)) from August 1984 to August 1987. Mr. Liu Dajin then
served as the deputy director and an instructor at the Financial
Management Teaching and Research Centre (B175%E B =) at
the Jimei College of Finance ((£EFEERIEZR (currently known
as: Finance & Economics Institute, Jimei University &3 K 281 5K &2
Bt)) from July 1989 to August 1995. Mr. Liu Dajin worked in various
faculties of the Jimei University (53 KX22) since September 1995
and is currently the director of the Faculty of Management of the
Chengyi University College, Jimei University (5£3& KEH % E07).
Mr. Liu Dajin has been an independent non-executive Director of
Mobile Internet (China) Holdings Limited (formerly known as China
Packaging Holdings Development Limited), which is listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 1439) since December 2013.

Ms. Cheng Shing Yan (£[/&fX) (“Ms. Cheng”), aged 43, was
appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director on 22 June
2017. She is also the chairlady of our Audit Committee. Ms.
Cheng has around 20 years of working experience in auditing and
accounting.

She joined the group of Sanroc International Holdings Limited,
which is listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1660), as the
chief financial officer and the company secretary in April 2016 and
has been an executive director of Sanroc International Holdings
Limited since April 2017. Ms. Cheng has also been appointed as
an independent non-executive director of Putian Communication
Group Limited (stock code: 1720) since October 2017, the shares
of which are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Ms. Cheng obtained a master degree in international accounting
at the City University of Hong Kong in November 2003. Ms.
Cheng was admitted as a member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants (ACCA) and the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA) in December 2000 and
July 2003 respectively. Ms. Cheng has also been admitted as an
associate of both The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries
(the "HKICS") and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators (the “ICSA”) in June 2017. Ms. Cheng is currently a
member of ACCA, HKICPA, HKICS and ICSA.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEREREEERE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Liu Zhengping (%5 ), aged 47, is the chief procurement
officer of our Group and is primarily responsible for developing
strategic plans and overall management of our Group's
procurement. Mr. Liu Zhengping joined our Group as the manager
for procurement department in August 2009.

In the earlier period of his career, Mr. Liu Zhengping was employed
as the chief sailor in the U-Ming I\/Iarine Transport (Singapore) Pte
Ltd. (AERME GrmE) FLABRAF) from May 2006 to July
2009. Mr. Liu Zhengping completed a 2 year course in ship piloting
at the Fujian Huian Sailing School (B2 & BLZAI=MEHES
R (currently known as f2E2E RM T RB AT ZHEKEBESN)
in July 1988 and completed a short course in ship piloting at the
Guangzhou Mariner School (/&8 24) in July 1994,

Ms. Lin Lizhen (%), aged 36, is the chief sales officer of our
Group and is primarily responsible for developing strategic plans
and overall management of our Group's sales. Ms. Lin Lizhen
joined our Group in April 2012 as the manager for the Sales
Department, responsible for sales and marketing function of the
Group.

Prior to joining our Group, Ms. Lin Lizhen worked at the Xiamen
Xuri Fubang Development Company Ltd. (EFF/EH & HEREER A
7)) as business assistant for more than five years (from July 2006
to March 2008, and from October 2008 to March 2012), responsible
for sales and marketing of alcoholic products. Ms. Lin Lizhen
obtained a professional certificate in web applications design from
the Quanzhou Normal University (R /MEDEEE2ET) in July 2006.

Mr. Zhang Jincong (5R#3H2), aged 50, is the chief production
officer of our Group and is primarily responsible for developing
strategic plans and overall management of our Group's production.
Mr. Zhang Jincong joined our Group as the manager for the
Production Department in January 2009. Prior to joining our Group,
Mr. Zhang worked as a self-employed merchandiser and traded
dried food from May 2001 to May 2008.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEREREEERE

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Wong Wai Lun (&%), aged 34, joined our Company in
March 2016 as the chief financial officer. He was appointed as the
Company Secretary on 11 April 2016. Mr. Wong Wai Lun obtained a
bachelor degree of commerce from the University of Queensland in
December 2004. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and has over 13 years of experience
in the field of accounting and auditing services. Mr. Wong Wai
Lun had been the financial controller and the company secretary
of China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Ltd.
(formerly known as Merry Garden Holdings Limited), a company
listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1237) from January 2014
to October 2015, and the joint company secretary of the same
company from October 2015 to January 2016. Prior to this, he
worked at KPMG from September 2008 to December 2013 with the
last position as a manager. He also worked at Poon & Co. Certified
Public Accountants from February 2005 to March 2007 and from
May 2007 to June 2008 with the last position as a senior auditor.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS
BEEWET N

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of China
Shenghai Food Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) is
pleased to announce the audited consolidated annual results of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2017 (the “Reporting Period"”), together
with the comparative figures for the corresponding period in 2016.

BUSINESS REVIEW
The Group sell dried seafood, seafood snacks and frozen seafood
in the PRC. We also sell algae and fungi in the PRC. The Group

(i) source high quality raw and processed raw materials, (ii) sub-
contract processing of the unprocessed raw materials to third
parties, (iii) package products at its own packaging facilities or

through sub-contractors, and (iv) sell packaged products under its
own brand “Wofan (K2Z)"”. The Group also sell dried seafood, algae
and fungi without packaging, and sell frozen seafood at a seafood
wholesale market.

During the Reporting Period, the Group's revenue grew
approximately 37.7% from approximately RMB468.0 million for
the year ended 31 December 2016 to approximately RMB644.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2017. The Group's gross
profit and gross profit margin for the year ended 31 December 2017
was approximately RMB163.5 million and approximately 25.4%,
respectively (Year ended 31 December 2016: approximately
RMB118.4 million and approximately 25.3% respectively).

The Group has a comprehensive product portfolio with different
raw materials, flavouring and packaging and consider each
product to be distinctive. The Group seek to differentiate itself
from its competitors by providing its customers with a broad and
convenient choice of product offerings, which creates additional
opportunities to drive overall sales to customers.

During the Reporting Period, the Group sold 213 products, which
comprised 104 dried seafood, 34 algae and fungi, 64 seafood
snacks and 11 frozen seafood.

During the Reporting Period, the Group sold its packaged products
through supermarkets, trading companies, convenience stores
and other sales channels, such as food companies, gift stores and
e- commerce retailers. The Group also sold unpackaged products
through these sales channels, as well as at a seafood wholesale
market for its frozen seafood products.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS
EERETWED N

The revenue growth of the Group during the Reporting Period was
driven by the increasing customer demand which was supported
by a corresponding increase in supplies. The Group believe that
customers choose the Group's products mainly based on (i) strong
historical sales record of its products, supported by effective sales
and promotion strategies, (ii) the Group’s stable product supply,
and (iii) the large and evolving range of diverse product offering.
Specifically, the Group has demonstrated its ability to (i) implement
effective sales and promotion efforts on its products, including the
sales and promotion teams stationed in the Group's customers’
stores to boost sales; and (ii) utilise favourable market intelligence
and research analysis conducted or arranged by customers on the
Group's products.

OPERATING RESULTS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
REVENUE

During the Reporting Period, the Group's revenue grew
approximately 37.7% from approximately RMB468.0 million for
the year ended 31 December 2016 to approximately RMB644.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2017, primarily due to (a)
the increase in sales volume and to a lesser extent, the increase in
average selling prices and (b) the increase in sales penetration of
the Group's products with existing customers.

The table below sets out a breakdown of the Group's revenue
categorised by product types during the Reporting Period:

RBEHRE  AEBRAEFER - THEP
FREREBEBIZMAOHT T EAARE - &
SERR FEPEIZENUTSHEBALE
BEEan ¢ ()R BAHE K 2RISR SR
T AEBERNBEHEES  (INKE
EmERE ¢ K(ii) A KR L EZ
EmAs - ABME  ARBECEPHEUATE
HWERERNEMFE REHER - BFER
ARG B 2 IR BT 8 6 N 8 B A e o 3
€ RINNBEPRAREERETHLHN
MF IS IERETI T o

REEBEN MK ERE

&

RFEHH  AEENREHEZE T —F
+ZA=+—HLEFEMARKLI68.08ETT
W37 7% 2B E-_E—+F+-_A=+—H
HFEMNHARBGCLI4AFTETL - TEHN(a)
HEEMERDEENTHERIER R(b)IE
IEEHEAEENERERARF °

RSN S DRA R EER RS
s

Year ended 31 December

BE+-—A=+—HLEE

% to total % to total
revenue revenue
2017 1HBWREH 2016 fHAAUEEH
—E—tF Bokk —ZE—XRHF BOLt
RMB’000 (%)  RMB'000 (%)
ARET T ARBTIT
Dried seafood 8 EMm 327,875 50.9% 255,817 54.7%
Algae and fungi BREERMEEER 257,199 39.9% 170,831 36.5%
Seafood snacks EERBEE® 52,471 8.1% 33,975 7.2%
Frozen seafood S EE R 6,862 1.1% 7,416 1.6%
644,407 468,039
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS
EEREWED N

The table below sets forth the revenue contribution from the
Group's sales channels during the Reporting Period:

TREFIAREOHERBENRE R AWK
BRE:

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=+t—-HLFE

% to total % to total
revenue revenue
2017 {hEWZEH 2016 fhHARUZER
—E—+fF Aok —ZZE—RHF Aokt
RMB’000 (%)  RMB'000 (%)

ARET ARBTIT
Supermarkets M 335,883 52.1% 241,738 51.6%
Trading companies = VNG 141,615 22.0% 100,106 21.4%
Convenience stores EFE 31,302 4.9% 21,479 4.6%
Wholesale market for seafood EBERETIS 6,862 1.0% 7,416 1.6%
Other sales channels HmiHERE 128,745 20.0% 97,300 20.8%
Food companies RmAA 49,760 7.7% 49,029 10.5%
Gift stores EIE 34,688 5.4% 21,674 4.6%
E-commerce retailers BEIEKTER 37,675 5.8% 20,822 4.4%
Others Hib 6,622 1.1% 5,775 1.3%

644,407 468,039

GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS PROFIT MARGIN ENRERN=E

Gross profit represents revenue less cost of sales, and gross profit
margin represents gross profit divided by revenue, expressed as a
percentage.

The following table sets forth the gross profit and the gross profit
margin by product category for the Reporting Period:

EMIRWR SR E KA - EF R IEEFBR AWK
@ AADLEY -

TREFINERE BRRERER B WENR
EF

Year ended 31 December

BE+-—A=+—HLEE

2017 2016

—F—+tF AN
Gross Gross
Gross profit Gross profit
profit margin profit margin
EF EFZE EF EF=
RMB’000 % RMB'000 %

ARET T ARETIT

Dried seafood 5 8Em 82,390 25.1% 66,430 26.0%
Algae and fungi SBREEMMNEEESR 66,683 25.9% 42,051 24.6%
Seafood snacks EERBEE R 12,908 24.6% 8,172 24.1%
Frozen seafood B EER & 1,525 22.2% 1,744 23.5%
163,506 25.4% 118,397 25.3%

The Group’s gross profit margin increased slightly by approximately
0.1% from approximately 25.3% for the year ended 31 December
2016 to approximately 25.4% for the year ended 31 December
2017, mainly due to the increase in sales of higher margin algae and
fungi products.

AEENEMNERRBEE T —RF+=A
=+ —BIEFEA23%EM EFA40.1%
EHE_ZEZ—+F+-_A=+—HILFEEH
254% @ TEHRAEERSHEZ RBEER
FREEREEERAMEY -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS
EERETWED N

OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES), NET

Other income represents rental income generated from the
seaweed farms located in Xiapu, the PRC and interest income from
bank deposits and secured loan receivable.

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Selling and distribution expenses primarily consist of salaries and
employee benefit expenses for employees engaging in the sales
and promotion activities, transportation expenses, advertising and
promotion expenses, rental expenses and other expenses. This
increase was primarily due to (i) an increase in salaries as a result of
an increase in average headcounts of the Sales Department as part
of the change in promotion strategy; (ii) increase in entertainment
expenses; (iii) increase in transportation expenses. As a percentage
of revenue, selling and distribution expenses remained relatively
stable at approximately 3.7% and 3.8% for the year ended 31
December 2017 and 2016, respectively.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Administrative expenses primarily consist of salaries and
employees benefit expenses, rental expenses, office expenses,
depreciation, listing expenses and others. As a percentage of
revenue, administrative expenses accounted for approximately
5.4% and 3.0% for the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2016,
respectively. Such increase was mainly due to the listing expenses
incurred and the increase in staff costs during the year ended 31
December 2017.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Income tax expense primarily consists of the Enterprise Income
Tax of Xiamen Wofan and Fujian Wofan, the applicable tax rate of
which being 25%. For the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2016,
income tax expense were approximately RMB34.2 million and
RMB24.3 million, respectively. The effective tax rates, calculated
as the income tax expense divided by the profit before income
tax, was approximately 32.7%, and 28.4% for the year ended 31
December 2017 and 2016, respectively. Such increase was mainly
due to the headquarters expenses and listing expenses incurred
in Hong Kong during the year ended 31 December 2017 were not
deductible for Hong Kong profits tax purpose.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and the
British Virgin Islands (the “BVI"), we are not subject to any income
tax in the Cayman Islands or the BVI.

Hong Kong profits tax at 16.5% has not been provided as the Group

had no assessable profits arising in Hong Kong for the year ended
31 December 2017 and 2016.

HEERMIERAR AR

HiW AR Hfpieds, (B18) B

H g AR A B E2R Y8 =I5 E £ Rl
T WA RERITE K 8 A AR B S E ) 8 U
A e

HERDHEMAX
HERSHAST T ERRNREHEREREEE
MEEMNF e REERBAMRAY  BHFAY &
ERHERY  HERST MEMMAS - AR
BAEEHROIEANREEEREN IR
EEPIF ABIE B EFSIE I () EBHR
FERSIGIN (i) BHFE MR - HERD
RN EM A O RISEEET  REE
ZEFRZE-RFTZA=T—HLEF
En A E3.7%Kk3.8% °

THEX
THASXEZeEFeMEBRIMAY - 8
X AR e EmAkEM-
THRAXHBENEOEREZE T —+F
FZE—RF+_A=1+t—"HBLEFES L
B5.4%RHI3.0% W EAETBHNEEZ
—+tF+ - A=t+—HILFEHMEEN LT
EBRANMBE TR LEFATE -

Fri8®ipe 2
FEHAYTEREEMAERBRERER
BABMEBLHANTCENSHR HE_F
—tFRZE-RNF+A=Z+—HLFE
FIEHEIARNAREM2EETLEAR
MIUMBABTL - HE_ZE—LHtFR-ZFT— X
F+_A=+—BHItFE  BERERRH
BRAXBRUBRFEHRAINEFFTE) D RIN A
327%K284% - W FAFERREBE-Z
—tF+ A=+ HIEFEREEELZR
AN EFTEBRAIY B EFBMERET
g(o

REFRSEHERABREZESNRANSRD -
AEBRAGNEARSEENEBRIZES
(RBEZES DAEH -

HE_Z—tFR-_T—R"F+-_A=+—H
HFE ARAEETERNEBELEERN G
) AW IR 16.5% TR REHEE B F1S B
1o

T LEERE

China Shenghai Food Holdings Company Limited | Annual Report 2017

14



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS
EERET WD

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

CASH FLOWS

During the Reporting Period, the Group funded its working capital
and other capital requirements principally by cash generated from
operating activities and advances from shareholders.

NET CURRENT ASSETS

Net current assets increased from approximately RMB152.7 million
as at 31 December 2016 to approximately RMB364.7 million as at
31 December 2017. The increase was primarily attributable to an
increase in cash and cash equivalent of approximately RMB175.3
million which was due to the proceeds from the Group’s initial
public offering and the increased profits generated from sales of
the Group's products.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT AND BANK BORROWINGS

During the Reporting Period, the Group maintained a healthy
liquidity position. As at 31 December 2017, cash and cash
equivalents of the Group was approximately RMB285.2 million, as
compared to approximately RMB110.0 million as at 31 December
2016. The Group has no bank borrowings as at 31 December 2017.

GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2017, the gearing ratio (calculated by total debt
divided by the total equity as at the end of the year) of the Group
remained nil as the Group has no bank borrowings.

INVENTORIES

As at 31 December 2017, inventories amounted to approximately
RMB41.6 million (2016: RMB31.6 million). The number of inventory
turnover days was approximately 28 days (2016: 30 days).

TRADE RECEIVABLES

As at 31 December 2017, trade receivables amounted to
approximately RMB97.9 million (2016: RMB74.5 million). The
Group granted its customers a credit period of 30 to 90 days
following the day of delivery. The number of turnover days for trade
receivables was approximately 45 days (2016: 45 days).

TRADE PAYABLES

As at 31 December 2017, trade payables amounted to
approximately RMB61.1 million (2016: RMB39.7 million). The
Group managed to obtain a credit period of an average of
approximately 30 days from the majority of its suppliers. The
turnover day for trade payables was approximately 35 days (2016:
38 days).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS
EERETWED N

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group had capital
expenditure of approximately RMB35,000 (Year ended 31
December 2016: Nil). The expenditure was mainly related to the
purchase of transportation equipment.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
As at 31 December 2017, the Group did not have any material
capital commitments.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2017, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities or guarantees.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS
As at 31 December 2017, the Group did not pledged any assets.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM INITIAL PUBLIC
OFFERING

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange on 18 July 2017 with net proceeds from the
global offering of approximately HK$123.3 million (after deduction
of underwriting fees and commissions and estimated expenses
payable in connection with the global offering). According to the
intended use as set out in “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in
the prospectus published on 30 June 2017 (the “Prospectus”), the
amount utilised as at 31 December 2017 was as follows:
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T

Net proceeds (HK$ million)
FERIERE(AESET)

Percentage Available Utilised Unutilised
Items HE Btk E;i EEH RENA
Enhance the market access and INeE T ISR ¥R BOFA
deepening the penetration of BiE R L3 &
Northern China and Fh [5R] Fp 7 B3 [
Central Western China 36.3% 44.8 - 44.8
Acquire new packaging equipment U B ERE &
and establishing the quality B BEEEI R
control and testing centre ORI 29.1% 35.9 - 35.9
Diversify and increase the sales AR INEEE K
and promotion efforts WEHEIE 24.6% 30.3 0.6 29.7
General working capital —MEEES 10.0% 12.3 11.0 1.3

The Company has no intention to use the proceeds contrary to the
description as stated in the Prospectus.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS
EEREWED N

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT, MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS
AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED
COMPANIES

There was no significant investment, material acquisition and
disposal of subsidiaries by the Company. The Group currently has
no plan to make any substantial investment in or acquisition of
capital assets, but will continue to seek for potential investment
or acquisition opportunities according to the Group's development
needs.

EXCHANGE RISK EXPOSURE

The Group mainly operates in the PRC and most of its operating
transactions are settled in RMB. Most of its assets and liabilities
are denominated in RMB. Although the Group may be exposed
to foreign currency exchange risks, the Board does not expect
future currency fluctuations to materially impact the Group’s
operations. The Group did not adopt formal hedging policies and
no instruments have been applied for foreign currency hedging
purposes during the Reporting Period.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had 466 full time employees
in total (31 December 2016: 390). The Group remunerates its
employees based on their performance, experience and prevailing
industry practice. Competitive remuneration package is offered
to retain elite employees. The package includes salaries, medical
insurance, discretionary bonuses, other benefits as well as
mandatory provident fund schemes for employees in Hong Kong
and state-managed retirement benefit schemes for employees in
the PRC.

FINAL DIVIDEND
The Board did not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2017 to the shareholders.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

The Directors is pleased to present its report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and
those of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in
Note 26 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group's turnover and results by business
segments for the year ended 31 December 2017 is set out in note
7 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business, financial key performance indicators and
outlook of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 are
provided in the Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion
and Analysis on pages 4 to 5 and pages 11 to 17 of this annual
report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

It is our corporate and social responsibility in promoting a
sustainable and environmental friendly environment. We strive
to minimise our environmental impact by saving electricity and to
build our Group in a sustainable way.

We have adopted a set of emergency planning, response
and control procedures as countermeasures for unexpected
environmental pollution accidents to minimise our impact on the
environment and the adverse effect on our business.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year, as far as the Company is aware, there was no
material breach of or non-compliance with applicable laws and
regulations by our Group that has a significant impact on the
business and operations of our Group.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

PRINCIPAL RISK AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group is exposed to the operational risk in relation to the
business of the Group. With the growth and expansion of our
operations, the potential risks to our business increase as
well. In order to identify, assess and control the risks that may
create impediments to our success, we have implemented a
risk management system that covers each material aspect of
our operations, including financial security, production, logistics,
technology and compliance. As our risk management is a
systematic project, each of our departments is responsible for
identifying and evaluating the risks relating to its area of operations.
Our Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing, assessing
and reviewing our risk management policy and supervising the
performance of our risk management system.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

EMPLOYEES

The Company recognizes that employees are our valuable assets.
Thus our Group provide competitive remuneration package to
attract and motivate the employees. Our Group regularly reviews
the remuneration package of employees and make necessary
adjustment to conform to the market standard.

SUPPLIERS

We have developed long-standing relationships with a number of
our suppliers and conducts a fair and strict appraisal on an annual
basis.

CUSTOMERS

We are committed to provide our customers with high quality
products and deliver on a timely basis. We also stay connected
with our customers to keep abreast of the changing customer
preference through regular visits of our sales teams.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 are
set out in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income
on page 70.

FOUR-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
past four financial years is set out on page 124 of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in Note 24 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.
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RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2017 are set out in the consolidated statements of
changes in equity on page 72 of this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2017, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and the Company's
articles of association (the “Articles of Association”), amounted to
approximately RMB98.3 million (as at 31 December 2016: Nil).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Sales to the Group's largest and five largest customers accounted
for approximately 7.7% and 29.8% of the total turnover for the year
2017 respectively. Purchases from the Group's largest and five
largest suppliers accounted for approximately 19.8% and 50.4% of
the total purchases for the year 2017 respectively.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, neither the Directors, their
associates, nor any shareholders who owned more than 5% of the
Company'’s issued share capital, had any beneficial interest in any
of the Group's five largest customers or suppliers during the year
ended 31 December 2017.

SUBSIDIARIES
Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in
Note 26 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment during
the year are set out in Note 14 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM INITIAL PUBLIC
OFFERING

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange on 18 July 2017. The net proceeds from the
listing were approximately HK$123.3 million (after deduction of
underwriting fees and commissions and estimated expenses
payable by the Company in connection with the global offering).

For details, please refer to the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis — Use of Net Proceeds from Initial Public
Offering” on page 16 of this annual report.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS
During the year, the Group did not made charitable contributions
(2016: Nil).
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENTS
The Directors of the Company who hold office during the year and
up to the date of this report are:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Liu Rongru (Chairman)
(appointed as a Director on 8 January 2016 and redesignated
as an Executive Director on 11 April 2016)
Mr. Jiang Dehua
(appointed on 11 April 2016)
Mr. Lin Jiangtang
(appointed on 11 April 2016)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Liu Dajin
(appointed on 22 June 2017)
Mr. Huang Xingluan
(appointed on 22 June 2017)
Ms. Cheng Shing Yan
(appointed on 22 June 2017)

In accordance with articles 83(3) and 84(1) and (2) of the
Company's articles of association, Mr. Jiang Dehua, Mr. Lin
Jiangtang, Mr. Liu Dajin, Mr. Huang Xingluan and Ms. Cheng Shing
Yan will retire at the annual general meeting ("AGM"). Mr. Jiang
Dehua, Mr. Lin Jiangtang, Mr. Huang Xingluan,Mr. Liu Dajin and
Ms. Cheng Shing Yan, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election.

None of the Directors, including those proposed for re-election at
the AGM, has a service agreement which is not terminable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

The Company has received confirmation on independence from
each of the Independent Non-executive Directors pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and all of them are considered to be
independent.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration of the Directors is determined with reference to
Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and the results
of the Group.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out in Note 13
to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management of
the Group are disclosed in the section headed "“Biographical Details
of the Directors and Senior Management” on pages 6 to 10 of this
annual report.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

The controlling shareholders of the Company entered into a
Deed of Non-Competition in favour of the Company dated 22
June 2017 (“Deed of Non-Competition”) as set out in the section
of “Relationship with the Controlling Shareholders” under
the Prospectus. The controlling shareholders confirmed their
compliance of all the undertakings provided under the Deed of
Non-Competition.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

During the year ended 31 December 2017, there was no material
acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries or associated companies by
the Company.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to a resolution passed by all the shareholders on 22
June 2017, the Company has conditionally adopted the share
option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose
of recognizing and acknowledging the contributions the eligible
participants had or may have made to the Group. The Board may, at
its discretion, grant options pursuant to the Share Option Scheme
to the Directors (including Executive Directors, Non-executive
Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors), the directors
of the Company’s subsidiaries and employees of the Group and
any other persons (including consultants or advisers) whom the
Board considers, in its absolute discretion, have contributed or
will contribute to the Group. The Directors were authorised to
grant options to subscribe for shares of the Company and to allot,
issue and deal with the shares pursuant to the exercise of options
granted under the Share Option Scheme and to take all such
steps as may be necessary and/or desirable to implement and
give effect to the Share Option Scheme. The maximum number of
shares in respect of which options may be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and under any other share option schemes of the
Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number
of shares in issue immediately following completion of the Global
Offering (as defined in the Company’s prospectus dated 30 June
2017), being 100,000,000 shares, excluding any shares that may
be issued under the options which have lapsed in accordance with
the terms of the Share Option Scheme (or any other share option
schemes of the Company), unless otherwise approved by the
shareholders of the Company in general meeting and/or such other
requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules from time to time.
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Unless otherwise approved by the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting, the number of shares that may be granted to an
eligible participant under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company (including both exercised
and outstanding options) shall not exceed 1% of the shares in
issue of the Company within any 12-month period. Any grant of
options to a Director, chief executive or substantial shareholder
(as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company or any of their
respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) is required
to be approved by our Independent Non-executive Directors.
Unless otherwise approved by the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting and/or such other requirements prescribed under
the Listing Rules, the number of shares that may be granted to a
substantial shareholder or any Independent Non-executive Director
or their respective associates under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company (including
both exercised and outstanding options) shall not exceed 0.1% of
the shares in issue, having an aggregate value in excess of HK$5
million, within any 12-month period.

There is no minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised, and the period during which an option
may be exercised will be determined by the Board in its absolute
discretion, however, no options shall be exercised 10 years after
they have been ranted. The subscription price of a share in respect
of a particular option shall be not less than the highest of (a) the
official closing price of the shares on the daily quotation sheet of
the Stock Exchange; (b) the average official closing price of the
shares on the daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (c)
the nominal value of a share. The Share Option Scheme shall take
effect from the date it is adopted and shall remain effective within
a period of 10 years from that date.

From the date that the Share Option Scheme became effective and

unconditional and up to the date of this interim report, no share
options were granted under the Share Option Scheme.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at the date of this annual report, the Directors of the Company
had the following interests in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company, its Group members and/or associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFQ")), as recorded in the register required to
be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code:

EERERTRAEBRRKRSD - HEAKROR
EENESRRAR

RAFHEH  AAREFNUTARA - 2
SERRARHEEER(EERELF AR
01 ([ 5825 R AR R JEXVER) ) BB AD ~ 48
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BIRESTAANE AR R MERFAT

(\N

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

Number of Interest (%)
Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interest shares FREL
EENA B EEME i 4= B 7 (%)
Mr. Liu Rongru Interest in controlled corporation/ 525,000,000 52.5%
eSS Long position (Note)
SR EE MR e (M)
Note: BEE -

The entire issued share capital of Precisely Unique Limited is legally and beneficially
owned by Mr. Liu Rongru, who is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by
Precisely Unique Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this annual report, none
of the Directors and chief executives of the Company had any
other interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company, any of its Group members or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required,
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant to the Model
Code.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at the date of this annual report, the following persons/entities
(other than the Directors or chief executive of the Company) had,
or were deemed to have, interests or short positions in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company, its Group members and/or
associated corporations which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

FERRRA QTR RAEERG S
1584

RAFRAH  THIAL  BB(TREALR
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Approximate
percentage of
shareholding
Number of Interest (%)

Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest shares FREN
REREE B miE gl 2= B2 (%)
Precisely Unique Limited Beneficial Owner (Note 1) 525,000,000 52.5%
HEBRDAE EnBEEA TR (HET)
Mr. Liu Rongru Interest in controlled corporation/ 525,000,000 52.5%
S HES Long position (Note 1)
REEEOER e ()
Ms. Lin Yueying Interest of spouse (Note 2) 525,000,000 52.5%
MAEZ L Bo B s (fIEE2)
Jiranek Investments Limited Beneficial Owner (Note 3) 75,000,000 7.5%
REAREBRAF] BEmBEEA TR (HE3)
Mr. Sun Shaohua Interest in controlled corporation/ 75,000,000 7.5%
BROELRE _ Long position (Note 3)
RiEHEENER A (EES)
Notes: BT
1. The entire issued share capital of Precisely Unique Limited is legally and 1. HEAARARNEHEFITRABIENEES
beneficially owned by Mr. Liu Rongru, who is deemed to be interested in the ERERES  PEWMEERRARETARA
Shares held by Precisely Unique Limited. A ARNRG R HEE R -
2. Ms. Lin Yueying is the spouse of Mr. Liu Rongru and is deemed or taken to 2. MAELZ T RBLMEENTRE - RIEZEFH K
be interested in all the Shares in which Mr. Liu Rongru has interest under the BEOIBERIEIERBIR M GRS
SFO. BROPHEERER
3. The entire issued share capital of Jiranek Investments Limited is legally and 3. AHNEREERABNEHEBRITRABEREDE

beneficially owned by Mr. Sun Shaohua, who is deemed to be interested in
the Shares held by Jiranek Investments Limited.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The articles of associations of the Company provides that the
Directors shall be indemnified out of the assets and profits of the
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they or any of them shall or may
incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or
omitted in or about the execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in
their respective offices or trusts.

The Company has taken out and maintained directors’ liability
insurance which provides appropriate cover for the Directors and
directors of the subsidiaries of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER’S
INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance to which the Company or its
subsidiaries was a party and in which the controlling Shareholder
or a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, there were no connected transactions and
continuing connected transactions between the Group and its
connected persons (as defined under the Listing Rules) which
are subject to the reporting, announcement and the independent
shareholders’ approval requirement under the Listing Rules.

The material related party transactions as disclosed in Note 27 to
the Consolidated Financial Statements are connected transactions
exempt from reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under the Listing Rules.

COMPETITION AND CONFLICT OF INTERESTS

None of the Directors or any of their respective associates, has
engaged in any business that competes or may compete with the
business of the Group, or has any other conflict of interest with the
Group.

PURCHASES, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

The Company did not redeem any of its listed securities, and
neither did the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchase or
sell any of the Company's listed securities since 18 July 2017 (the
“Listing Date"”) up to the date of this report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules as at
the date of this annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to adopt corporate governance
practice. The Company’s corporate governance practices are set
out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 28 to 40.

AUDITORS

The Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31
December 2017 have been audited by BDO Limited which retires,
and being eligible, offer itself for re-appointment at the AGM. A
resolution to re-appoint BDO Limited and to authorize the Directors
to fix its remuneration will be proposed at the AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Jiang Dehua

Executive Director

Xiamen, the PRC, 29 March 2018
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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The Board is committed to maintaining a good standard of
corporate governance practices and business ethics in the firm
belief that they are essential for maintaining and promoting
investors’ confidence and maximizing shareholders’ returns. The
Board reviews its corporate governance practices from time to time
in order to meet the rising expectations of shareholders and comply
with the increasingly stringent regulatory requirements, and to
fulfill its commitment to excellence in corporate governance.

The Company has adopted the code provisions in the Corporate
Governance Code (the "CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules as its own code of corporate governance. The
Board considers that up to the date of this annual report, in the
opinion of the Board, the Company has complied with the CG Code.
The Company will continue to enhance its corporate governance
practices appropriate to the conduct and growth of its business
and to review its corporate governance practices from time to time
to ensure they comply with the evolving regulatory requirements
and to meet the rising expectations of the shareholders and other
stakeholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

(A) BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Responsibilities and Delegation
The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of
the Company, overseeing the Group’'s businesses, strategic
decisions, internal control, risk management systems and
monitoring the performance of the senior management. The
management is responsible for the daily operations of the
Group under the leadership of the Chairman. The Directors
have the responsibility to act objectively in the interests of
the Company.

The Board has delegated various responsibilities to the
Board committees including the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee.
Further details of these Committees are set out below in
section B of this corporate governance report.
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Board Composition
The Board members during the year ended 31 December
2017 and up to the date of this report are as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Liu Rongru (Chairman of the Board and Nomination
Committee and Member of the Remuneration Committee)

Mr. Jiang Dehua

Mr. Lin Jiangtang

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Liu Dajin (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
and Member of the Nomination Committee and the Audit
Committee) (appointed on 22 June 2017)

Mr. Huang Xingluan (Member of the Remuneration
Committee, Nomination Committee and the Audit
Committee) (appointed on 22 June 2017)

Ms. Cheng Shing Yan (Chairlady of the Audit Committee)
(appointed on 22 June 2017)

The Board currently comprises three Executive Directors
and three Independent Non-executive Directors from
different business and professional fields. The profiles
of each Director are set out in the "Biographical Details
of Directors and Senior Management” section in this
annual report. The Directors, including the Independent
Non-executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum
of valuable business experience, knowledge and
professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective
delivery of the Board functions.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy with an
objective to achieve diversity on the Board. The Company
considered diversity of board members can be achieved
through consideration of a number of aspects, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills and knowledge.
All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the board.

The Company has received annual confirmation from
each of the Independent Non-executive Directors of his/
her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers all of the Independent Non-
executive Directors are independent.
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Board Meetings

The Board is scheduled to meet regularly at least four
times a year at approximately quarterly intervals, to discuss
the overall strategy as well as the operation and financial
performance of the Group. Ad-hoc meetings will also be
convened when necessary. Such Board meetings involve
the active participation, either in person or through other
electronic means of communication, of a majority of
Directors.

Agenda and Board papers together with all appropriate,
complete and reliable information will be provided to all
the Directors before meetings. All the Directors will be
provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties,
and, upon reasonable request, the Directors will be able
to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company's expenses. All Directors
will have the opportunity to include matters in the agenda
for board meetings. The Company Secretary of the Company
is responsible to keep the minutes of board meetings and
meetings of Board committees. All minutes are open for
inspection by any Director at reasonable time on reasonable
notice.

Since the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual
report, three Board meetings have been held, at which the
Directors approved the interim results of the Group for the
six months ended 30 June 2017 and the annual results of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017, reviewed
the results announcement and interim and annual report and
resolved other business matters.

The Company’s Articles of Association contain provisions
requiring Directors to abstain from voting and not to
be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving
transactions in which such Directors or any of their
associates have a material interest. According to current
Board practices, any material transaction, which involves
a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder or a
Director, will be considered and dealt with by the Board at a
duly convened Board meeting.
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Appointments, Re-election and Removal of Directors
Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for an initial fixed term of
three years commencing from the Listing Date renewable
automatically until terminated by not less than three months’
notice in writing served by either party on the other expiring
at the end of the initial term or any time thereafter. All of
their appointments are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election in accordance with the Articles of Association of
the Company.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has
entered into a letter of appointment with our Company on
22 June 2017. Each letter of appointment is for an initial
term commencing on the date of the letter of appointment
and shall continue thereafter subject to a maximum of
three years unless terminated by either party giving at least
one month’'s notice in writing. All of their appointments
are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in
accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company.

All Directors shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years.

The Nomination Committee has reviewed the
reappointments/appointments of both the Executive
Directors and the Independent Non-executive Directors and
recommended to the Board for decision.

Training Induction and Continuing Development of
Directors

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a Director of
the Company and of the conduct, business activities and
development of the Company.

Each newly appointed Director will receive formal,
comprehensive and tailored induction on the first occasion
of his/her appointment to ensure appropriate understanding
of the business and operations of the Company and full
awareness of director’s responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Directors are continually updated on developments in
the statutory and regulatory regime and the business
environment to facilitate the discharge of their
responsibilities.
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(B)

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has since 22 June 2017 adopted the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies (the “Model Code"”) as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules. Following a specific enquiry, all the
Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Model
Code since the listing of the Company on 18 July 2017.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Nomination Committee

The Company established a Nomination Committee on 22
June 2017 with written terms of reference in compliance
with paragraph A.5.2 of the Code Provisions. Its terms of
reference are available on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to
review the structure, size and composition of the Board
on regular basis; to identify individuals suitably qualified
to become Board members; to assess the independence
of Independent Non-executive Directors; and to make
recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating
to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors. The
Nomination Committee comprises two Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Liu Dajin and Mr. Huang
Xingluan and one Executive Director, namely Mr. Liu Rongru
(Chairman).

When identifying suitable candidates for directorship, the
Nomination Committee will carry out the selection process
by making reference to the skills, experience, education
background, professional knowledge, personal integrity
and time commitments of the proposed candidates, and
also the Company’s needs and other relevant statutory
requirements and regulations required for the positions. All
candidates must be able to meet the standards as set forth
in Rules 3.08 and 3.09 of the Listing Rules. A candidate to
be appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director
should also meet the independence criteria set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. Qualified candidates will then be
recommended to the Board for approval.
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Audit Committee

The Company established an Audit Committee on 22 June
2017 with written terms of reference in compliance with
Rule 3.21 and Rule 3.22 of the Main Board Listing Rules.
The written terms of reference of the Audit Committee was
adopted in compliance with paragraph C3.3 to C3.7 of the
Code Provisions. Its terms of reference are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee, among other
things, are to make recommendation to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external
auditors, review the financial statements and provide
material advice in respect of financial reporting and oversee
the internal control and risk management procedures of the
Company. As at the date of this annual report, the Audit
Committee consists of three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Ms. Cheng Shing Yan (Chairlady), Mr. Liu
Dajin and Mr. Huang Xingluan.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Company’s
financial statements and the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2017, including
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Company and Group.

Since the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual
report, two meetings have been held by the Audit
Committee. At such meetings, it reviewed the interim
results of the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2017.
It also reviewed the annual results of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2017 with the independent auditors
and the activities of the Group's internal control and risk
management functions. It also reviewed the Company’s
progress in implementing the corporate governance
requirements as set out in the CG Code.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established a Remuneration Committee on
22 June 2017 with written terms of reference in compliance
with Rule 3.25 and Rule 3.26 of the Listing Rules. The
written terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
was adopted in compliance with paragraph B1.2. of the
Code Provisions. Its terms of reference are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are
to make recommendation to the Board on the overall
remuneration policy and structure relating to all Directors
and senior management of the Group and to ensure
none of the Directors determine their own remuneration.
The emoluments of Executive Directors are determined
based on their skills, knowledge, individual performance
as well as contributions, the scope of responsibility and
accountability of such Directors, taking into consideration
the Company'’s performance and the prevailing market
conditions. The remuneration policy of Independent Non-
executive Directors is to ensure that they are adequately
compensated for their efforts and time dedicated to
the Company's affairs including their participation in
their respective Board committees. The emoluments of
Independent Non-executive Directors are determined with
reference to their skills, experience, knowledge, duties
and market trends. As at the date of this annual report, the
Remuneration Committee consists of two Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Liu Dajin (Chairman) and
Mr. Huang Xingluan and one Executive Director, namely Mr.
Liu Rongru.
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Details of remuneration of Directors are set out in Note 13 to
the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Since the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual
report, two meetings have been held to review the
remuneration packages paid to Directors and senior
management for the financial year.

The attendance of individual members of the Board and
other Board Committees meetings since the Listing Date
and up to the date of this annual report is set out in the table
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(C)

Compliance Advisor

Pursuant to the Compliance Advisor Agreement dated 28
April 2016 entered into between the Company and Dongxing
Securities (Hong Kong) Company Limited (“Dongxing”),
Dongxing has been appointed as the compliance advisor
as required under the Listing Rules for the period from the
Listing Date to the date on which the Company dispatched
its annual report in respect of its financial results for the
first full financial year after the Listing Date. Dongxing has
received a fee for acting as the Company’'s compliance
advisor during the period. Pursuant to Rule 3A.23 of the
Listing Rules, the Company shall consult with and, if
necessary, seek advice from Dongxing on the following
matters:

° the publication of any regulatory announcement,
circular or financial report;

° where a transaction, which might be a notifiable or
connected transaction is contemplated including
share issues and share repurchase;

o where the Company proposes to use the proceeds
from the initial public offering in a manner different
from that detailed in the Prospectus or where the
business activities, developments or results of the
Company deviate from any forecast, estimate or other
information in the prospectus; and

° where the Stock Exchange makes an inquiry of the
Company regarding unusual movements in the price
or trading volume of the securities of the Company.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ and Auditors’ Acknowledgement

The Audit Committee and the Board have reviewed the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2017. The Directors acknowledge
their responsibilities for preparing accounts, the financial
statements, performance position and prospects of
the Group. Management has provided information and
explanation to the Board to enable it to make an informed
assessment of the financial and other information put before
the Board for approval. The Directors believed that they
have selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently, made judgment and estimates that are prudent
and reasonable.
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The Board is not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to the events or conditions which may cast significant doubt
over the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
Accordingly, the Board has continued to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

The accounts for the year were audited by BDO Limited
whose term of office will expire upon the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

Auditor’s Remuneration
For the year ended 31 December 2017, the analysis of the
remuneration of the Company's auditor, BDO Limited, paid/
payable is set out below:
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Amount

&5

(HK$'000)

(FB¥FT)

Audit services EZR 1,080
As reporting accountants for the Company's EBARATIE IR ARLE

initial public offering B ER IR EHAM 2,100

Total Bzt 3,180

The Audit Committee will recommend the reappointment of
BDO Limited for audit service, and consider the engagement
of the non-audit services to ensure the independence and
objectivity of audit service.

BRZBEeRERERE B EREE
FHEMEISPTAR A BHIR B RS - A
ZRERIBETIFR LRI ARREBZR
BB RFEIL -

FREASRMIERERAAE | Z T —LFEHRS
China Shenghai Food Holdings Company Limited | Annual Report 2017

37



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

A A g s
= %/ﬂ*ﬁ%

(D)

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has overall responsibility for the internal control
and risk management systems of the Company. Internal
controls and risk management are used by the Board to
facilitate the effectiveness and efficiency of operations,
safeguard the investment of Shareholders and assets of the
Company and to ensure compliance with relevant statutory
and regulatory requirements. The Company's internal control
and risk management policies are designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatements and help the Board identify and mitigate, but
not eliminate, risk exposure. The policies and procedures
of internal controls (which include financial, operational
and compliance controls) are considered to be adequate
and effective based on the annual review conducted by the
Board through the Audit Committee.

In light of the size and scale of the Group's businesses, the
Group currently does not have an internal audit department.
The Board will review and consider to establish such
department as and when it thinks necessary. As such,
the Board, supported by the Audit Committee, is directly
responsible for risk management and internal control
systems of the Company and for reviewing its effectiveness.
In order to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance, the Company engaged an external independent
consultant with professional staff in possession of relevant
expertise to assist in identifying and assessing the risks of
the Group through a series of interviews; and independently
perform internal control review and assess effectiveness of
the Group's risk management and internal control systems.
The results of the independent review and assessment
have been reported to the Audit Committee and the Board.
The improvement of the systems of risk management
and internal control is an ongoing process and the Board
maintains a continuing commitment to strengthen the
Company’s control environment and processes. Based
on the findings and recommendations of the report as
well as the comments of the Audit Committee, the Board
considered the internal control and risk management
systems effective and adequate.
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(E)

(F)

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Board appoints its Company Secretary in accordance
with the Company’'s Articles of Association and in
compliance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.
Biographical details of the current Company Secretary is set
out in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Management” on pages 6 to 10 of this annual
report. The Company Secretary has complied with the
professional training requirement as set out in the Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December
2017.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Board welcomes shareholders to present their views
and shareholders may at any time submit their questions
and concerns about the Group. Enquiries may be put
to the Board or senior management by contacting the
Company Secretary through our shareholders’ email at
enquiry@xmwofan.com or by phone at 852-3702 6977 or
directly by raising questions at the general meeting of the
Company.

Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-tenth of Company's
paid up capital may request the Board to convene an
extraordinary general meeting. The objects of the meeting
must be stated in the related requisition deposited at the
Company's registered office and addressing to the Company
Secretary at the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong. The extraordinary general meeting will be held
within 2 months after the deposition of such requisition.

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue
at general meetings, including the election of individual
Directors.

All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted
on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will
be posted on the websites of the Company and of the Stock
Exchange after each general meeting.

Any Shareholder may appoint a proxy or representative to

attend the general meeting, and they are entitled to exercise
the same voting rights in the meeting.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

The Company considers that effective communication
with shareholders is essential for enhancing investor
relations and investor understanding of the Group's
business performance and strategies. To promote effective
communication, the Company maintains a website at
http://www.xmwofan.com, where up-to-date information
and updates on the Company’s business operations and
developments, financial information, corporate governance
practices and other information are posted.

The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue
with its shareholders and in particular, through AGMs
or other general meetings to communicate with the
shareholders. Shareholders are encouraged to participate in
general meetings or to appoint proxies to attend and vote at
meetings for and on their behalf.

The forthcoming AGM of the Company will be held on 15
May 2018. The notice of AGM will be sent to shareholders at
least 20 clear business days before the AGM.

Constitutional Documents

The latest version of the Memorandum and Articles of
Association of the Company is posted on the Company's
website.
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APPROACH

China Shenghai Food Holdings Company Limited (“China Shenghai
Food”) and our subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) are
committed to providing high-quality seafood products in China,
while integrating sustainability into its business strategy. Various
factors, including business related challenges, work ethics, global
trends, laws and regulations, etc., are taken into account in order to
constantly promote business growth and achieve sustainability.

The Group recognizes its responsibility to be accountable to
all its stakeholders, including customers, potential investors
and shareholders, employees, suppliers, non-governmental
organizations (NGOs) and local community. Understanding
the needs and expectations of the stakeholders is the key to
the Group's success. As each stakeholder requires a different
engagement approach, the Group has established a tailor-made
communication method, in order to better meet each stakeholder’s
expectations.

Within the Group, we are continuously monitoring the risks and
exploring potential opportunities. For the sake of striking a balance
among business needs, social demands and environmental
impacts, we are committed to understanding and addressing the
ESG risks and their impact on our customers, the communities and
the environment.

To implement sustainability strategies to all levels of the Group,
the top-down approach is adopted for the following sustainability
strategies:

8 To achieve environmental sustainability

2, To respect human rights and social culture
3 To engage with stakeholders

4, To support our employees

3 To sustain local communities
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

China Shenghai Food Holdings Company Limited (“China Shenghai
Food") and our subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) are pleased
to present our first Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG")
Report. The content contained herein focuses on providing an
overview of the environmental, social and governance performance
of our major operations in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC")
from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2017. It allows us to conduct
thorough performance review and evaluation for enhanced results
in the future. The reporting period is consistent with our financial
year.

SCOPE OF THE REPORT

This report has been prepared in accordance with the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide"” in
Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). The two ESG subject areas, namely
Environmental and Social, are disclosed separately, highlighting
the impacts of the operations of the Group in People’s Republic of
China (“PRC") from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2017.

For this year, the material ESG issues are those which have or may
have a significant impact on:

° The PRC's business;

° The PRC's dried seafood, seafood snacks and frozen
seafood market;

° The environment or society now or in the future;
° Our financial performance or operations; and/or
° Our stakeholders’ assessments, decisions and actions.

The data and information used in this report are referenced from
our archived documents, records, statistics and research.

FEEDBACK

For details in relation to our financial performance and corporate
governance, please visit our website on http://www.xmwofan.com
and our Annual Report. We also treasure your feedback and
comments on our sustainability performance, please send your
feedback and other sustainability enquiries to our Headquarter in
China at enquiry@xmwofan.com.
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ABOUT CHINA SHENGHAI FOOD

OUR BUSINESS

China Shenghai Food was listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in 2017 with stock code 1676. The
principal operation activity of the Group is selling dried seafood,
seafood snacks, frozen seafood, algae and fungi in the PRC. The
Group is currently offering 213 types of products, which comprises
104 dried seafood, 64 seafood smacks, 34 algae and fungi, and 11
frozen seafood. With the competitive advantage of selling various
products of high quality, the Group excels in the food industry in
the PRC and establishes a strong brand name.

OUR VISION
To become a leading brand of excellence in green food.

OUR MISSION
To deliver healthy and green food products to our customers by our
traditional food processing techniques.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
As at the date of this announcement, the Board consists of:

Executive Directors
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Independent Non-executive Directors

HITES BYEHITES

Mr. Liu Rongru Mr. Liu Dajin

Bl b BIRESEE

Mr. Jiang Dehua l\/Ir Huang Xingluan
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Mr. Lin Jiangtang Ms. Cheng Shing Yan
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OUR STAKEHOLDERS

China Shenghai Food actively strives to better understand our
stakeholders and engage them to ensure that improvements are
implemented to our products and services. We strongly believe
that our stakeholders would play a crucial role for sustaining the
success of our business in the challenging market.

Stakeholders

Possible concerned issues

Mz EEAE
REFERMIEGENSAAEE SRR  UEE
RN R E - KRR E R FINER R
AR# - HAIRME - MmBEBEEERMRTIS
PRENSEBRIN T HDEEEEEENA
@ o

Communication and responses

FEEmE BEAREE BiEEE
HKEx Compliance of the Listing Rules, timely and accurate Meetings, training, roadshows, workshops, programs,
announcements. website updates and announcements
L BT ETRA - REmERDTIEAR - g% BB TG 58 BUERROM
Government Compliance of laws and regulations, preventing tax Interaction and visits, government inspections, tax
evasion, and social welfare. returns and other information
T BEPERER  DILBT R ERA - BERED  BAER  ARBRREMER
Suppliers Payment schedule, stable demand. Site visits
HIER AHEERRBESR - EFD
Shareholders/ Corporate governance system, business strategies and  Organizing and participating in seminars, interviews,
Investors performance, investment returns. shareholders’ meetings, financial reports or operation
reports for investors, media and analysts
BE/BEE PEERE  EBRBRER  REBR HER2EAREER  EREOWAEROHAE 5
K REAE  RREFRENEREXZERS
Media & Public Corporate governance, environmental protection, human Issue of newsletters on the Group's website
right.
KERAR hERER RR A RASERUTIEHER
Customers Product quality, delivery times, reasonable prices, service Site visits, after-sales services
value, labour protection and work safety.
EP mEXR  RAERE  ARNER  REEE SIRER EHFHRERRS
IER%E -
Employees Rights and benefits, employee compensation, training Conducting union activities, trainings, interviews for
and development, work hours, working environment. employees, issuing employee handbooks, internal
memos, employee suggestion boxes
ES BFREN  EERM  BIIRER  TERKR IHER RRILED B BESETESR  HEEEF
5o it FERHETS  RUESERMS
Community Community environment, employment and community ~ Developing community activities, employee voluntary
development, social welfare. activities and community welfare subsidies and
donations.
it HERE  EREMEZE  H8EF- FEMRES  ESEREE  HERNHEE -
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SECTION A: ENVIRONMENTAL

China Shenghai Food aims at providing its customers with healthy
seafood products of high quality, while sustaining the business
model in the long run without depleting natural resources.

As one of our guiding principles, we strive to minimize the adverse
environmental impacts brought by our operations. The culture
of environmental protection is widely adopted throughout every
operating unit of the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, there was no material non-
compliance issue with relevant laws and regulations related to the
environment.

ASPECT A1: EMISSIONS

Recognizing that reducing air pollution is critical to save the planet
from global warming, we have implemented eco-friendly measures
to reduce carbon footprint in our business operations.

Emissions

Air Emissions

The Group’s business operations do not involve gaseous fuel
consumption. Our main pollutants lie in the vehicles we employed
to distribute our products. The emissions data of the key air
pollutants, which include nitrogen oxides (“NOx"), sulphur oxides
("SOx") and particulate matter (“PM"), are as followed.

ARD  BIE
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The emissions of all these three air pollutants have increased when
compared to last year, as the Group has experienced a significant
growth in the revenue by approximately 38%. To reduce the
kilometres travelled and the consumption of fuel, we fully utilized
the capacity of the vehicle, so as to ensure the transportation of
products is completed with the least travelling frequency. Due
to our continuous efforts in improving our transportation routes,
we have successfully controlled the surge in our air emission
per revenue at approximately 6%. We will continue to strategize
environmentally-friendly policies to alleviate our environmental
impact.

2o = 3= SA

HEFRL > BRERSRYNEREDE
LT REAAEEMKRKNEIERL
38% ° AR ATTEBIE RMELEFRE - B
DHAERNZER - BRARETEAXER
B ° HRRPITES D E(CERRAR - A
E BTN 8 B 10 U & #9 R SR B DO B A2 4D
6% ° T AR AL AR B E IR IRBUR ABR K 3 I
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Year 2017 2016
F4 —E—tF —F—REF
Air emissions (kg) RREEM(AT) 2,480 1,696
Air emissions per thousand Renminbi of FARET TSR ARAREER

revenue (gram per thousand Renminbi) (ZFEAR¥TIT) 3.85 3.62
Air emissions per employee (kg per employee) &Z1EEB AR

(AFBREE) 5.32 4.35

Greenhouse gas emissions B = R
Greenhouse gases contribute to global warming, which leads to  B=qgae (P2 &R SR EE (LT EHZ

climate changes and threatens the ecosystem of the whole world.
As a corporate with social responsibility, reducing greenhouse gas
emissions is top our concern.

The greenhouse gas emissions of the Group were mainly from the
usage of vehicle and energy indirect emissions as illustrated by the
following charts.

2016 Greenhouse
Gas Emissions
TE-RFRAEREEN
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The total greenhouse gas emissions of the Group was
approximately 411 tonnes in the financial year 2017, which
increased by 8% when compared with the figure in the financial
year 2016. To reduce our greenhouse gas emissions, apart from
reducing the travel frequency of vehicle as mentioned above,
energy-saving measures were also taken into effect. Employees
were encouraged to turn off idle lighting and air-conditioning,
production efficiency was enhanced and lighting was replaced by
the usage of sunlight in 2017. Our efforts resulted in 10% reduction
in per employee greenhouse gas emissions, and 22% reduction in
greenhouse gas emissions per thousand Renminbi of revenue.

AEER T —EHRFENRERBATEN
ERAANE - B T R M BRFENHF
BIN8% AR AR E R - BRIZ E3CPR
AU B IE)TTERSARIN - ANEE T ERENERRE
i R _F—+tF - AEEEESRHEER
ERARBLRER  RELEMERERGL
RERA - RPINERESREENEERE
BERURL A 10% @ A EFARE T T a8
EREHFBORL22% -

Emissions in tonnes

BER(LAWEST)

Scope Emission Sources 2017 2016
g BERRIR —E—tHF —E—R
Scope 1 Emissions from Fossil Fuel Consumption 214 147
i1 RELEREEREBBER
Scope 2 Emissions from Electricity Consumption’ 190 229
&2 KEEIHFERTER
Scope 3 Emissions from Water and Sewage Processing? 1 1
#HIS3 K EK KK BB BER?

Emissions from Disposal of Paper Waste 5 4

KB BRIBRE A PR

. 0.71 kg per kWh is taken as the emission factor of electricity supplied in the
Mainland.

g 0.60 kg per m® is taken as the emission factor for processing fresh water and
sewage in the Mainland.

L BTERE.71 AT ARMEHEEE I BEREE

2 F3773K0.60 A T 73 A4 7K J 05 7K B2 32 B0 R K
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Year 2017 2016
E46 ZE—+F —TREF
Greenhouse gas emissions (tonnes) mE AR (WE) 411 381
Greenhouse gas emissions per employee BHAEENEEREHEN

(tonnes per employee) (BBERE) 0.88 0.98
Greenhouse gas emissions per thousand FBARE T TWERBEEREDENR

Renminbi of revenue (AT HAR®ETIT)

(kg per thousand Renminbi) 0.64 0.81
Waste Management BEYELE

The major operations of the Group involve processing the raw
materials into final products, packing the final products and selling
the packaged products under our own brand. No material hazardous
waste, which includes but not limited to chemical wastes and
hazardous chemicals are generated by the Group. Non-hazardous
wastes, which includes but not limited to domestic wastes and
garden wastes, are also not applicable to the operation of the
Group.

ASPECT A2: USE OF RESOURCES

The Group is committed to become a resource-saving and
environment-friendly enterprise to promote environmental
protection. We have been actively strengthening the energy-saving
measures in order to reduce emission.

Energy Consumption

The electricity consumed by the Group’'s offices is one of the
largest contributors to the greenhouse gas footprint. To reduce
the Group’s carbon and energy footprints, the Group has put
energy conservation practices in place, and continued to upgrade
the hardware into more energy efficient options, such as some
appliance with energy efficient labels.
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The total energy consumption for the financial year 2017 was R-ZE—+tHBFEEREFELE45210
approximately 210 MWh. The Group has implemented several JKFE R - NEBE B T ERRLEHE © BIER
energy-saving measures, including posting memo to remind BifEiFiRRE B E NMF BRERFBIRHRE -
employees unplugging the devices when the devices are not in  &ENWME S » KAEBNE I ERER_-_Z—/<
use. The consistent efforts of the Group have helped reduce the BIBEERKL17% - AEBEMERERAZE
electricity consumption by 17 % when compared with the financial JNE-Z— NFNTFLZ2BIEE EFEL651T
year 2016. The Group's energy use intensity has also been reduced FEEHALIIN%E—_ES—+EEGLZ2BEE Y
by 31%, from approximately 651 kWh per full-time employee in #9451 T FEL#S o

2016, to approximately 451 kWh per full-time employee in 2017.

Energy Consumption 825 E#E
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Water Consumption

Although about 70% of the Earth’s surface is water, only around
3% of the total global water is freshwater, which can support all the
living species in the world. Saving the precious water resources is
of the Group’s utmost objective.

The total water consumption was 2,067 cubic meter during the
financial year 2017. With water saving notices posted, the water
consumption per thousand Renminbi of revenue has been reduced
by approximately 21%, and the water consumption per employee
has also been reduced by approximately 9%.

IKOEFE
BEMIRKRELHOTIO%ZK - DEEKERE
BHI3% AKX+ A Bt R A WIEEA K
NEE - NP KB RRAEBREEN
BiZ-

RZZE—+tHBRFEENKEREE B2,0673L
FoAK o ARRMEIYNAKETR BARET T
W ACHFER D 421% R B2 & 8 87K H
TR 4I9% ©

2016 Water Consumption 2017 Water Consumption
“E-REKHFE

ZE-EFKERE

2017 2016
—E—+HF —E—RF
Water consumption (cubic meters) ICBFE(Z 7 K) 2,967 1,894
Water consumption per employee BHEERIKER
(cubic meters per employee) (M AKBEZREE) 4.44 4.86
Water consumption per thousand Renminbi & A R T T WK EFE
of revenue (liters per thousand Renminbi) (AAR¥FIT) 3.21 4.05
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Packaging Materials

The packaging materials used by the Group are mainly cardboard.
We have utilized fully every packaging material by packaging more
products in larger boxes, to avoid excess packaging. However, as
the products produced increased with our sales, the total packaging
materials used increased in this year compared with last year. Yet,
the packaging materials usage per thousand Renminbi of revenue
was reduced by 19%. With our efforts to reduce packaging material
usage, we are confident to reduce the packaging material usage in
the coming years.

BRI

AEBEERNBREMHEIZRMAR - HFIEE
FEREANE2BEREZEM  ZHOMNBERE
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Packaging Material Usage

BEMBAE
|
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2017 2016

—E—+tHF —ZE—RF

Packaging materials (tonnes) BLEER R (E) 373 335
Packaging materials per thousand Renminbi & AR T iz e & el

of revenue (kg per thousand Renminbi) (AT BARETT) 0.58 0.72

ASPECT A3: THE ENVIRONMENTAL AND NATURAL
RESOURCES

The Group believes that corporate development should not
come at the expense of the environment. Therefore, we
adopt environmental friendly practices in various aspects to
reduce emission, and promote efficiency to reduce resources
consumption. For the materials used in 2017, 6% of which was
recyclable materials, showing our determination in reducing our
environmental impact.

EHA3 : RERRARER
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With the Group's efforts in minimizing its impacts on the HRANEEZHFLOHEBENTZE  KEFH

environment, the Group has successfully achieved the following: S AT A

Aspects Results

B i

Air Pollutant Emissions Controlled the increase in our air emission per revenue at approximately 6%.

KRG RMBER 110 Wz B9 K REE UG I 2 6 E 16 % ©

Greenhouse Gas Emissions Achieved 10% reduction in per employee greenhouse gas emissions, and 22%
reduction in greenhouse gas emissions per thousand Renminbi of revenue.

iz SRS BER ERGHEEMNAZEREBEHBRD10% EEAREFTREABEEREFSRLD
22% °

Energy Consumption Reduced the electricity consumption by 17%, and reduced 31% energy use
intensity per full-time employee.

EEYNEE = BIHBERD17T% R BE2BEENERERAREZHMI31% °

Water Consumption Water consumption per thousand Renminbi of revenue was reduced by

approximately 21%, and the water consumption per employee was reduced by
approximately 9%.

KB FARET ITREICEFER D #21% KGR EENKBEERLLI9% °
Packaging Material Usage Reduce 19% per employee packaging materials usage
BEMERAS BHEENBEMBASERA19%
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SECTION B: SOCIAL - EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR
PRACTICES

ASPECT B1: EMPLOYMENT

Our staffs are always our most valuable assets. Our Group's
success is contributed by every single effort made by our staffs.
Their job satisfaction, well-being and development are all crucial to
us.

Our Employees

We hired 466 employees as at 31 December 2017, which has
increased by 19% when compared with last year, for the sake of
fulfilling our increasing sales volume.

2017 Percentage of Employees 2017
by Gender

BHs  HE—REREIER

EEB1 : EfE

BT XKERRMASREENEE - NEENKD
ENBERETITHNBRE N FENTIERE
B BAREROERMEEEER -

HI81ES
BREHEERRERNE X RN T —F
FE+-F=+—HEM466ZEE - HEFIR
Lt - BB ABUENI19% ©

Percentage of Employees
by Age Group

—B LERERIBSWEEESL —T-tERFRANNSNESEIL

m Male
B

= Female
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6%
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m 26-35
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2017 Turnover Rate by Gender 2017 Turnover Rate by Age Group
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Employees Benefits

We offer attractive employee benefit package for all our talented
staffs. Their performances are reviewed and assessed annually for
pay raise and promotion. Our appraisal criteria is fair and open to
all staffs, including but not limited to their capacity, contributions
to the Group and endorsements by the senior management. All
employees were enrolled into Social Security Scheme and Housing
Provident Fund within their first month of employment. Insurance
was also purchased in case of any accident or illness.

Harmonious Workspace

A harmonious and inclusive working environment is essential for
building up employees’ sense of belonging and job satisfaction. We
strive to build a harmonious workplace free from any harassment
and discrimination. Our recruitment policies guides to select
candidates based on experience and expertise. We respect human
rights, providing equal opportunities for its staffs, regardless of
their age, race, gender, national origin, religion, physical or mental
disability, medical condition, pregnancy, marital status or sexual
orientation.

Employees Work-life Balance

We understand that every employee has his/her own personal
goals and interests. We promote work-life balance of our
employees by offering 8 working hours per day. Overtime
compensation hours and pays are in line with the local laws and
regulations. As we know that a long working day can be tiring and
frustrating, we offer one and a half hours long lunch break for our
staffs. We believe promoting employees’ well-being is critical for
running a sustainable and successful business.
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ASPECT B2: HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Group is committed to providing a safe working environment
for its employees. The Group aims not only to meet the minimum
occupational health and safety standards required by law, but to
exceed them.

An Employee Safety Handbook was formulated and circulated
among employees. The Safety Committees are responsible for
ensuring the appropriate policies, procedures and safeguards
are put into practice. Health and safety education, training and
appraisal have been taken in place to raise employees’ attention
towards workplace health and safety, and protect them against any
occupational hazards. First aid kit and fire extinguisher are prepared
and checked by the Safety Committee regularly in case of any
injuries or emergencies.

In the light of these practices, we have achieved zero lost days due
to work injury, and no death or permanent disability case was noted
during 2017.

ASPECT B3: DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

We design our training to equip our staffs with the work-related
skills. In 2017, we successfully achieved 100% training rate, all
staffs have completed the training sections specified to satisfy
their needs. A total of approximately 10,464 hours of training were
provided, including orientation training and training regarding team
spirit.

[EHEB2 : @RERZE
AEEF NN BEREEBRH T2 TIFRE -
AEBH BRI AU REBNERR E O RIER
ERFERREIRE -

Kﬁlﬂmélﬁiiﬁiﬁél¢@ﬁ 7S
B A EREREENBE  EF RRES
mﬁ%am AEEDRREEEARZ2HE -

BN MRS EES TESMERRLLY
ENER  VRERFEZEABELE - 2

HMBERNGEARZEERE®
U BEEERAZERERE

E%ﬁﬁ&@ﬁ'

HRZEME - BT ERTBBRREMIE
HE BER Tt FWEBEARTIRAMN
‘KL ERE R -

EBEB3 : #E&IEI
ﬁﬁ%ﬁmaﬁéﬁliflﬁmﬁﬁwok

— & BMKHERT100%EIIE - AT
ﬁalﬁnﬁﬁﬁﬁ SSREVEEREIIBLE - &
54 IR 4710,464/ N - BIEHA
HIE A EEBE SR

Average Training Hours

Training Hours by Gender

Completed per Employee by

BRI Bl D RS2 Gender \
EHRE s NEREETKI
45555 R
2
23 ~
m Male 22.5
B 29 - T
F |
hours e 2157
/N 21 A
20.5
20 : .
Male Female
B4 pegi

FEMERMIZERARAA | ZE—tFERE
China Shenghai Food Holdings Company Limited | Annual Report 2017

58



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT

BIR - 4 ERERRE

ASPECT B4: LABOUR STANDARDS

Respecting human rights has been an integral part of the Group's
approach to sustainability. The Group fully complies with labour
laws and other relevant legislations that prohibit child labour and
forced labour. The Group does not employ any person below
the age of eighteen at our workplace. The Group forbids any
detainment of personal documents or wage of employees. Any
violence, such as deliberately causing difficulties, threats and
corporal punishment, forcing employees to work is also prohibited.
The Group ensures no employee is made to work against his/her
will, or work as forced labour, or subject to corporal punishment or
coercion of any type related to work.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, there was no material non-
compliance with applicable laws and regulations that related to
labour standards.

Communication with Employees

We treasure employees’ comments and feedbacks. WWe encourage
employees to speak up with ideas and issues. Employees can rise
out their concerns to their supervisor or to the General Manager
directly. Both verbal and written forms of communication are
accepted, so as to build up harmonious relationships with the
employees.

SECTION B: SOCIAL - OPERATING PRACTICES

ASPECT B5: SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

As a food processing group, we recognize the importance of
supply chain management for providing safe and green food to
our customers. As at 31 December 2017, we are working with
65 suppliers in the Mainland China. During our supplier selection
process, we would not only obtain the basic information of the
suppliers, but also research on the capital structure of suppliers,
to as to ensure its financial sustainability. Our Procurement
Department is responsible for fieldwork assessment to test and
observe the production and management of the suppliers, as
well as its safety equipment and compliance issue. Our Quality
Assurance Department would then undergo quality testing process
after food samples are obtained.

Our Procurement Department is responsible for monitoring the
performance of suppliers and conducting annual supplier appraisal,
underperforming suppliers are excluded from our approved
vendor list instantly. Moreover, apart from our Quality Assurance
Department, we engaged external quality assurance service
provider to do sample testing on the quality of every batch of our
inputs and outputs.

With Procurement Department, Quality Assurance Department and
the external quality assurance service provider being responsible
for our supply chain management, we are confident to continue
serving our customers with high-quality food.
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ASPECT B6: PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

We are committed to provide food products with high standards
of quality and reliability. Various channels are set up for customers
to express their comments and recommendations. Customers can
easily find our contact number, fax number and email address on
the packaging materials of our products. Our Sales Department
would be handling all customers’ feedbacks.

During the year, 47 complaints were received, only an immaterial
proportion of products were returned back. Those complaints
were mainly about the breakage of packaging materials during
the transportation process. We would work on improving both
our packaging and transportation process, in order to achieve
excellence.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, there was no material non-
compliance with applicable laws and regulations related to product
responsibility.

ASPECT B7: ANTI-CORRUPTION

To promote a good and ethical business culture, we have regular
anti-corruption training for employees. The training covered the
relevant laws and regulations, past court cases and the way to deal
with corruption. A specific policy was formulated and circulated,
for educating employees about corruption, bribery and conflict of
interest, as well as the proper ways to deal with those situations.
The whistleblowing procedures are also shown on the policy, so
employees can report any suspected cases timely.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, there was no concluded

legal case regarding corrupt practices brought against the Group or
its employees.
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Whistleblowing Procedures

We are highly cautious about any misconduct related to bribery
and corruption. Employees are encouraged to report any suspected
misconduct or malpractice within the Group through various
confidential reporting channels, including but not limited to letter
writing, emails and phone calls. Employees may also contact the
Administration Manager directly for the corruption cases reporting.
The security and confidentiality of the reporting channels are
also placed at our top concern, only top management and staffs
authorized can reach those reporting information.

SECTION B: SOCIAL - COMMUNITY

ASPECT B8: COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

We have demonstrated a strong commitment to the community by
continuously providing green and healthy seafood products of high-
quality.

With our fastidious quality control measures, we aim to become a
leading brand of excellence in green food.

REGULATORY COMPLIANCE

The Group was not aware of any non-compliance with laws and
regulations that has a significant impact on the Group relating
to emissions, employment, health and safety, labour standards,
product responsibility and anti-corruption during the reporting
period.
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ENVIRONMENTAL DATA RIEYE
A1. EMISSIONS Al HER
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
Bz BE
“E—tf —ERF
+t=A=+-8 +=A=t-~ Unit
LHEE HE5E A va
Air emissions 2,480 1,696 kg
KRR NIy
Operational transportation distance 719,818 492,273 km
2B ERBE yNES]
Diesel Consumption 79,180 54,150 L
SeHIERE #
Air emissions per thousand Renminbi of revenue 3.85 3.62 g/thousand
Renminbi
BARET TSN AREEN ®R/ARETT
Air emissions per employee 5.32 4.35 kg/employee
BRESNARIENR AT/ EE
Greenhouse gas emissions 411 381 tonnes
RERBHEN A
Scope 1 Emissions from Fossil Fuel Consumption 214 147 tonnes
&1 L AR BN 2 L7
Scope 2 Emissions from Electricity Consumption® 190 229 tonnes
#i52 BB E® WA
Scope 3 Emissions from Water and Sewage Processing* 1 1 tonnes
3 KBTI R E 7
Emissions from Disposal of Paper Waste 5 4 tonnes
EREEHENE WA
Greenhouse gas emission intensity 0.88 0.98 tonnes/employee
RERBHNEE W,/ g8
Greenhouse gas emission per thousand Renminbi of revenue 0.64 0.81 kg/thousand
Renminbi
BARETTURNEERBHENE INION S
9 0.71 kg per kWh is taken as the emission factor of electricity supplied in the 3 BTREO0.71 AT ARMAEEE 1 BB BUREL
Mainland.
2 0.60 kg per m? is taken as the emission factor for processing fresh water and 4 B2 J52K0.602 T A R 1K K K& 75 7K B2 3R #) HE B
sewage in the Mainland. fREK -
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A2. USE OF RESOURCES A2. ERAE

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

BZ HE

—E—tF —E-RF
+=-A=+—-H +=-A=+-—8H Unit
FE HEE By
Energy consumption 210 254 MWh
BB RE TR
Energy consumption intensity 451 651 kWh/employee
BEREREEE ThE EE
Energy consumption per thousand Renminbi of revenue 0.33 0.54 kWh/thousand
Renminbi
BARE T TWEHEREFE TRE/
ARETT
Water consumption 2,067 1,894 m3
TKOBFE MK
Water consumption intensity 4.44 4.86 mé/employee
HOBRERE MAK/BE
Water consumption per thousand Renminbi of revenue 3.21 4.05 L/thousand
Renminbi
BARB T TWRERIKERE ft/ARETT
Packaging material consumption 373 335 tonnes
BEMEER A
Packaging material consumption per thousand Renminbi 0.58 0.72 kg/thousand
of revenue Renminbi
BARBT TR BEMEDER INIWON &
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SOCIAL DATA HEEE
B1. EMPLOYMENT B1. EE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
BZE HE
—E—+tF —ZE—RF
+=-—A=+—-8 +=ZA=+—H
IEFE HFE
Total number of employees [ EE 466 390
By Gender MRS 5
Male E=fs 124 86
Female pegis 342 304
By age group RERAERE D
Under 18 185 A T = =
18 to 25 18552 255% 26 16
26 to 35 2678 £355% 145 100
36 to 45 365k 2455% 155 133
46 to bb 4677 2 555% 130 129
56 to 65 5657 2 655% 10 12
65 or above 655% s A - =
Employment turnover ERERE
Total number of employee turnover BEEREEH 22 530
% of employee turnover EEREBBEDL 4.7% 4.9%
By Gender ZMERIE
Male %1& 2.4% 13.1%
Female M 5.3% 9.5%
By age group R4 RIE
Under 18 183 IA T - -
16 e 25 1832 2575% - 11.1%
26 to 35 265% 2 355% 1.4% 7.4%
36 to 45 3655 2 455% 1.3% 9.5%
46 to 55 46BEE555% 9.7% 8.5%
56 to 65 565% £655% 28.6% 33.3%
65 or above 655R A - 100%
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B2. HEALTH AND SAFETY B2. REEZE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
8= H=E
—E—+F —ZE—X
+=A=+-8 +=A=+—8
13- I
Number of reported injuries WEZBAZ = =
Injury rate RS = = -
Number of lost hours BRER - =
Lost day rate BRBAHLR = -
B3. DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING B3. BRI
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
BZE HE
—E—+F —E-RF
+=BA=+—-8 +=ZA=+—8
IEFEE IEFE
Total number of hours of internal training & B < AEEIIE
received by employees AR 10,464 7,857.8
Average hours of training per employee  H&EBMEIIFEHER 22.45 20.15
Number of employees received training EZEREE ASK 466 390
Training Rate =3I 100% 100%
B5. SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT B5. REE S
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
BZE HE
—E—+5F A
Tr=ESr=E T2AEST—E
LHFE IEFE
Total number of suppliers HEFHBH 65 62
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B6. PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY B6. EmET
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
8= H=E
—E—+5F TR
+=—A=+—-8B +=—A=+—H
IEFE IFFE
Total number of products subject to HAZ 2 KkiEREREASE R
recalls for safety and health reason EE AR 2,243 1,953
Percentage of products subject to BEEMRGEMBER
recalls to total number of products ADLL 0.1% 0.1%
Total number of complaints or BEMNRFIRERE
return cases received 47 30
B7. ANTI-CORRUPTION B7. RES
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
BZE H=E
—E—+tF —E—RF
t=ZA=t—-8 t=A=+—8
LFE LEFE
Number of concluded legal cases HEBITASEEEREN
regarding corrupt practices brought [N DE R/
against the issuer or its employees ESuS gE| - -
B8. COMMUNITY INVESTMENT BS. HEERE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
BZE HE
—E—+F —E—RF
T2ESar=E r2HET—E
LFE IEFE
Corporate charitable donation PEZREBN = -
Number of employee volunteer BB BFEE A = -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYRBAHRES

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA SHENGHAI FOOD
HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Shenghai Food Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 70 to 123,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2017 and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2017 and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKASs"”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matter are those matter that, in our professional
judgment, was of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

REVENUE RECOGNITION
The Group is principally engaged in the dried seafood, algae and
fungi, seafood snacks and frozen seafood trading business.

Revenue represents income from sales of dried seafood, algae and

fungi, seafood snacks and frozen seafood products sourced from
Mainland China.
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REVENUE RECOGNITION - continued

The Group enters into sale and purchase agreements with the
distributors and supermarkets and in accordance with the terms of
the agreements, revenue is recognised when the related risks and
rewards of ownership of the products have been transferred to the
distributors and supermarkets.

We identified revenue recognition as a key audit matter because
revenue is one of the key performance indicators of the Group
and therefore there is an inherent risk of manipulation of the
recognition of revenue by management to meet specific targets or
expectations.

OUR RESPONSE
Our procedures in relation to assess the recognition of revenue
included the following:

Obtaining an understanding of and assessing the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness of key internal
controls which govern revenue recognition;

Inspecting sale and purchase agreements, on a sample
basis, to understand the terms of delivery and assess
whether management recognised the related revenue in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policies, with
reference to the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;

Comparing sales records for a sample of sales transactions
recorded during the year with relevant underlying
documentation, which included sales invoices and good
delivery notes with evidence of the customers’ receipt
of the goods and the date of receipt of the goods by the
customers;

Comparing, on a sample basis, specific revenue transactions
recorded before and after the financial year end date with
the underlying sale and purchase agreements and good
delivery notes to determine whether the related revenue had
been recognized in the appropriate financial period;

Scrutinising all journals affecting revenue raised during the
reporting period and comparing details of a sample of these
journal, which met certain risk-based criteria, with relevant
underlying documentation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYRBAHRES

IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT ON TRADE RECEIVABLES
Refer to summary of significant accounting policies in Note 5,
accounting estimates and judgements in Note 6 and disclosure
of trade receivables in Note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had net trade receivables
amounting to RMB97,914,000, which represent 22% of the total
assets of the Group and is considered quantitatively significant to
the Group.

In determining the impairment assessment on trade receivables,
the management considers the credit history including default or
delay in payments, settlement records, subsequent settlements
and ageing analysis of the trade receivables.

We have identified impairment assessment of trade receivables as
a key audit matter due to considerable amount of judgement and
estimates being required in conducting impairment assessment as
mentioned in the forgoing paragraph.

OUR RESPONSE
Our procedures in relation to management’'s impairment
assessment on trade receivables included:

° Obtaining an understanding of the provision for impairment
of trade receivable estimated by the management;

° Scrutinising the source documents throughout the year to
understand settlement patterns by major customers;

° Testing the ageing analysis of the trade receivables, on a
sample basis, to the source documents; and

° Assessing the reasonableness of recoverability of trade
receivables with reference to the credit history including
default or delay in payments, settlement records,
subsequent settlements and ageing analysis of individual
customers.

HEERMIERAR AR

8 5 B W IRRE R

IR AR A B HmAR M B B A G AT R
2 - M6 & atfhat KA A MK E 18 E
HIEYKIARE -

R-ZE—+F+-_A=+—H  B£BH
B RWFIRFEASAREKI7,914,000 7T
(1f BEEEEEREMN2%)  BEHREA

e

BEREMEEER

RETE SREFBREN G > BEESE
BIEERLE  BRERITEEMNK - G
8 RBRENRE S RUGRAENRED T

AT TR B PR E RHE S 7R 2 E L K E #)
B K e - BSO8R E S R EGRRERHE
RAREZEH -

EEHEE
EEREEEHE SRR EFEETH
RFER:

. THREREMANE S EKEIRRE

B

. ERREFENRENTRIZEPH
AR

. HRIEMEGETTE 5 R IRMKER DT
AR R

. R2ZEELE(BRERNEFHNER
SHIEB R - IRk - RESN &R
e M) FHE E B R WRIR A B 1 2

LA -

T LEERE

China Shenghai Food Holdings Company Limited | Annual Report 2017

66



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYRBAHRE S

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company's
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibilities in this regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of
our engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYRBAHRES

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal
control.

evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYRBAHRE S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

° obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
the matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matter in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Wan Che Bun

Practising Certificate Number P05804

Hong Kong, 29 March 2018
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

mEZHEBER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BEZ =T —+tF+-A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (3B ERIN © UAREFIR)

2017 2016
—E—+F ZE—RE
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
{h=s AR®T T AREFT
Revenue Ik &% 7 644,407 468,039
Cost of sales SHE AR (480,901) (349,642)
Gross profit EF 163,506 118,397
Other income and other gains/(losses), Hupug A R E b dezs,(E18) 8
net HER 195 435
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEEX (23,806) (17,838)
Administrative expenses THRX (34,912) (14,039)
Other expenses HmAx (598) (1,320)
Finance costs IR AN 9 - (219)
Profit before income tax R BT 18 8% Alas F 10 104,385 85,416
Income tax expense FrigHi i 11 (34,183) (24,264)
Profit for the year attributable EARHEE ABLEREF
to owners of the Company 70,202 61,152
Other comprehensive income Hit 2 E WA
Items that will be reclassified HEfEEF D218 Y
subsequently to profit or loss: EH :
— Exchange differences arising on —BREBINEIFELEMN
translation of foreign operations MEHZER (1,719) (804)
Other comprehensive income for the year SR E i 2 mE WA (1,719) (804)
Profit and total comprehensive income Z2AT#EHE AL ERRSF]
for the year attributable to owners E2mEWA#EEE
of the Company 68,483 60,348
Earnings per share SRER 12
- Basic and Diluted (RMB) —EXRBE(ARET) 0.0812 0.0815

BT

BREERERAT | —T—tFERSE

China Shenghai Food Holdings Company Limited | Annual Report 2017

70



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF

FINANCIAL POSITION

e PR R

As at 31 December 2017 R=Z—+F+=A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (3B ERIN © UAREFIR)

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
P ARET ARETIT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
Non-current assets FREEE
Plant and equipment R = & 5% A 14 130 196
Prepaid lease payments AT ERE 15 129 179
Deposits paid to suppliers YR FHERZIZS 16 6,000 2,500
6,259 2,875
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 17 41,575 31,591
Trade receivables B S e IE 18 97,914 74,533
Deposits, prepayments and & - BEREREM
other receivables FE W FRIE 19 13,967 3,649
Cash and cash equivalents HENEESEEY 20 285,243 109,982
438,699 219,755
Current liabilities =R
Trade payables B S 5RIA 21 61,056 39,715
Accruals, deposits received and BEER  BEldEE X
other payables E b RS 3RI8 22 3,602 20,405
Provision for taxation IR R 9,323 6,924
73,981 67,044
Net current assets REBEEZFRE 364,718 152,711
Net assets REE 370,977 155,586
CAPITAL AND RESERVE BEXR#E
Share capital f& 7R 24 8,723 =
Reserves His 362,254 155,586
Total equity RS RE 370,977 155,586
On behalf of the directors RERES
Mr. Liu Rongru Mr. Jiang Dehua
L8k E BEESE
Director Director
2 BF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF

CHANGES IN
REERSBR

EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BEZ =T —+tF+-A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BSBIERI - UAREZITR)

Share Share Special ~ Statutory  Exchange Other  Retained Total
capital premium*  reserve*  reserve*  reserve*  reserve*  earnings* equity
ke RiteE* HBHRE iERE EARE  HbREe  REERP heE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR
Note24  Notefa  Notelb)  Notel(cl
(iR} Wik B ) Bkl
Balance at 1 January 2016 RoE-AE-B-RNER - = 17,800 4,796 = = 72,642 95,238
Profit for the year EngH = - - - - - 61,152 61,152
Other comprehensive income Af2EHA
Exchange differences arising on BB FBELN
translation of foreign operations ERER = - - - (804) - - (804)
Total comprehensive income EREERALE
for the year - - - - (804) = 61,152 60,348
Transfer to statutory reserves ERTITRE - - - 3,104 - - 3,104) -
Group Reorganisation (Note ) SEEA (M) - - - - < 5,800 (5,300) =
Balance at 31 December 2016 and ~ R=F-~E+=A=+-HR
1 January 2017 ZE-tE-B-AMER - - 17,800 7,900 (804) 5800 124890 155586
Profit for the year ERgH] - - - - - - 70,202 70,202
Other comprehensive income At2EHA
Exchange differences arising on REBNEBELN
translation of foreign operations ERER - - - - (1,719 - - (1,79
Total compreNensive income EpzANALE
for the year - - - - (1,79 - 70,202 68,483
Transfer to statutory reserves BRI - - - 5,767 - - (5,767) -
Issue of shares pursuant to the listng ~ RAA ARG A METRH
of the Company's share (note 24(g))  (Kf3324(g)) 2,166 140,795 = - = - - 142,961
Capitalisation of shareholders' loan ~ REEHEZAL
note 24(el) (Pi3E24(e)) 2 19938 - - - - - 19,940
Capitalisation issue of ordinary shares ~ E&IR& AL #{T
(note 24(f) (Msk24(0) 655  (6,555) - s - - - ,
Expense incurred in connection with — BETHEEREL 25X
issue of new ordinary share (Fizt24(g))
(note 24(g)) - (15993 - - - - - (15,993
Balance at 31 December 2017 R-E-tE+ZA=1-A
it 8,723 138,185 17,800 13,667 (2,523) 5,800 189,325 370,977
3 The total of these balances represents “Reserves” in the consolidated  * RERRREREAMBRRERAN [HE] -

statement of financial position.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BEZE =T —+tF+-A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (3B ERIN © UAREFIR)

Notes:

(a) Share premium account of the Company represents the excess of the
proceeds received over the nominal value of the Company's share issued.

(b) During the year ended 31 December 2014, the director has waived the
repayment amounted to RMB17,800,000 from its outstanding balance. It was
deemed as contribution to the Company and has been capitalised to special

reserve.

(c) The statutory reserve represents the amount transferred from net profit for
the year of the subsidiaries established in the PRC (based on the subsidiaries
PRC statutory financial statements) in accordance with the relevant PRC
laws until the statutory reserves reaches 50% of the registered capital of the
subsidiaries. The statutory reserve cannot be reduced except either in setting

off the accumulated losses or increasing capital.

(d) On 27 April 2016, New Lead Worldwide Limited (“New Lead"”) acquired
100% equity interest in Xiamen Wofan Foodstuff Company Limited
(“Xiamen Wofan") from their shareholders at an aggregate consideration
of US$892,307 (equivalent to RMB5,800,000) which was based on the
registered capital of Xiamen Wofan. New Lead settled such consideration by
cash, which was advanced by shareholders of the Company. The amounts
due to shareholders is included in accruals, deposits received and other
payables as at 31 December 2016 with the corresponding amount recognised

as deemed distribution to shareholders.

After the acquisition of Xiamen Wofan, the Company became the holding
company of the Group thereafter. The amount transferred to other reserve

represents the nominal value of the share capital of Xiamen Wofan.

Wi

(b)
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AR BRAITRDRAVEE R ©

RZZE—ARFWNAZ+tH  FERKARAA
(IFEHEEMRERMERAR(EFTRE])
MREMEEFARLYN 2 DRAER  BRER
892,307 7t (#& M AR #5,800,0007T) + JyiR
BEPIRLEMFMERTE - FAUARARMRE
BNMBLEFHEBERE - BEIREFRER=F
—ANFE+ZA=+—Bit AEER  Blize
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF

CASH FLOWS
MERSRER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE—T—+F+_-_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (& BBERIN © AAREFIR)

2017 2016
ZE—tF T NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥F T ARETIT
Cash flows from operating activities RETHRENE
Profit before income tax R FTAS B A 4 104,385 85,416
Adjustments for: AT S IEEL A%
Depreciation of plant and equipment WE N EREITE 101 116
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments AR ERIE S 50 50
Finance costs B 7 X AR = 219
Bank Interest Income RITH S WA (575) (279)
Loan Interest income B F B A (68) =
Operating profit before working VB 5 BB T A AS & T
capital changes 103,893 85,622
Increase in trade receivables B 5 e IEE M (23,381) (23,222)
Increase in deposits, prepayments and e BNREREAM
other receivables FE U GRIE E AN (14,308) (3)
Increase in inventories FEE N (9,984) (6,269)
Increase in trade payables B 5 FE T F IR S N 21,341 232
Increase in accruals, deposits received JEETER - BElLe REM
and other payables FEAT FRIEIE AN 1,404 829
Cash generated from operations KEZEN B2 78,965 57,089
Income taxes paid EATFTEH (31,784) (22,789)
Net cash generated from operating activities A&& & By E 46 FH 2 47,181 34,300
Cash flows from investing activities RETBRENRE
Purchases of plant and equipment EERE MG (35) =
Decrease in pledged bank deposits BEEMRITHERRLD = 72
Interest received 2 W F B 575 279
Net cash generated from WEEEEER
investing activities FHRE 540 351
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF

CASH FLOWS
MERSRER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BEZE =T —+tF+-A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (3B ERIN © UAREFIR)

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETT
Cash flows from financing activities AMELTBRERE
Payment of listing expenses (capitalised) T EMHRZ(BEEARL) (15,993) =
Proceeds from issue of share BITRMO IS EIE 142,961 =
Repayment on interest bearing borrowings st EBEEEXR - (9,625)
Advance from shareholders AR SR A FK 2,134 17,295
Interest paid EFE - (219)
Deemed distribution to shareholders BRAIERE DR - (5,800)
Net cash generated from financing activities @& & B4+ £ FE & 129,102 1,651
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents RERREZSEYREINELE 176,823 36,302
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FENHEERBEEEY
of year 109,982 73,679
Effect of exchange rate changes EXgHHReRESEEY
on cash and cash equivalents -4 (1,562) 1
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FREERERESEHEY 285,243 109,982
Analysis of balances of cash and ReRASEEYES
cash equivalents ok
Cash and bank balances & MIBITHES 285,243 109,982
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF
CASH FLOWS
MERSRER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE—T—+F+_-_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (& BBERIN © AAREFIR)

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities from
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for which
cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the
Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from
financing activities.

METHELE2AEHER

THREINAEEREZDANEEENESF
B BERASRFREEDH METDELZ
ﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁémiiﬂixfﬁi/MLEEAZKE@,n
/\Izgui/mi /\*Eﬁﬁﬂé/ﬁébiﬁ/i\/ﬁgzg
f& o

Amounts
due to
shareholders
FET AR R RIE
RMB'000
ARBT T
At 1 January 2017 R-ZE—+tF—H—H (18,194)
Changes from financing cash flows: RMERSRESH
Advance from shareholders R B # IR (2,134)
Total changes from financing cash flows BMERSREEHRE (2,134)
Other changes Hith& g
Capitalisation of shareholders’ loan R B 7 B A 19,940
Exchange realignment b H B R 388
Total other changes HihE s 4% 20,328
At 31 December 2017 R=B-—+tHF+=A=+—H -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
~ e B R YR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BSHIERI © UMARETITR)

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 8 January 2016 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961,
as revised and consolidated) of the Cayman Islands and its
shares have been listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
since 18 July 2017. The Company's registered office is
located at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The Company's
principal place of business is located at 5th floor, No.5
Factory, Meixi Road, Huandong Water, Tongon District, Huli
Industrial Park, Xiamen City, Fujian Province, PRC.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding
and the principal activities of its subsidiaries (together with
the Company collectively refer to as “Group”) is packaging
and sales of seafood products.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND GROUP
REORGANISATION

In preparation of the listing of the Company’s shares on
Stock Exchange (the “Listing”), the Group underwent a
corporate reorganisation (“Reorganisation”) to rationalise its
group structure.

Prior to the Reorganisation, the Company's principal
operating subsidiaries are Xiamen Wofan and its subsidiary,
Fujian Wofan Foodstuff Co., Limited (“Fujian Wofan").
Xiamen Wofan was controlled by Mr. Liu Rongru. Mr. Liu
Rongru is the controlling shareholder.

Pursuant to the Reorganisation as more fully explained
under the section headed “History, Development and
Reorganisation” in the prospectus dated 30 June 2017, the
Company became the holding company of the comprising
the Group on 27 April 2016. Immediately prior to the
completion of the Reorganisation, the business operation
has been conducted through Xiamen Wofan and Fujian
Wofan.

Pursuant to the Reorganisation, Xiamen Wofan and Fujian
Wofan are transferred to and held by the Company indirectly
through New Lead and Billion Bond Holdings Limited
("Billion Bond”). Upon completion of the Reorganisation,
the Company has become a subsidiary of Precisely Unique
Limited which is wholly-owned by Mr. Liu Rongru. The
Company has not been involved in any business prior to the
Reorganisation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHRRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBEIERIN + UAREFIR)

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND GROUP

REORGANISATION - continued

The Reorganisation is merely inserting the Company, Billion
Bond and New Lead as holding companies on top of Xiamen
Wofan, which has not resulted in any change of economic
substance in the ownership and business of the Group. The
Group comprising the Company and its subsidiaries resulting
from the Reorganisation is regarded as a continuing entity.

The consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the years ended
31 December 2017 and 2016 have been prepared to present
the results and cash flows of the companies now comprising
the Group, as if the current group structure had been in
existence throughout the years ended 31 December 2017
and 2016 or since their respective dates of incorporation,
whichever is the shorter period. The consolidated statement
of financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2016
has been prepared to present the assets and liabilities of
the companies now comprising the Group as if the current
group structure had been in existence, at that date, taken
into account the respective dates of incorporation.

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(A) ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSs -
EFFECTIVE FROM 1 JANUARY 2017

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the
first time, the following new and revised standards,
amendments and interpretations (“new and revised
HKFRSs") issued by the HKICPA, which are effective
for the Group’s financial year beginning on or after
1 January 2017.

Amendments to HKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows

Amendments to HKAS 12  Income Taxes

Amendments to HKAS 7 — Statement of Cash
Flows

The amendments introduce an additional disclosure
that enable users of financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities.

The adoption of the amendments has no impact on
these financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 - Income Taxes

The amendments relate to the recognition of
deferred tax assets and clarify some of the necessary
considerations, including how to account for deferred
tax assets related to debt instruments measured of
fair value.

The adoption of the amendments has no impact on
these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHmRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBEIERIN + UARMEFIR)

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) — continued

(B)

NEW/REVISED HKFRSS THAT HAVE BEEN ISSUED
BUT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially
relevant to the Group’s financial statements, have
been issued, but are not yet effective and have not
been early adopted by the Group. The Group's current
intention is to apply these changes on the date they
become effective.

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Share-Based Payment’

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments’

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers’
Amendments to HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers’
HKFRS 16 Leases?
HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency
Transactions
and Advance
Consideration’
Uncertainty over income
tax treatments?

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

[ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018

a Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019

Amendments to HKFRS 2 — Share-Based Payment

The amendments provide requirements on the
accounting for the effects of vesting and non-
vesting conditions on the measurement of cash-
settled share-based payments; share-based payment
transactions with a net settlement feature for
withholding tax obligations; and a modification to the
terms and conditions of a share-based payment that
changes the classification of the transaction from
cash-settled to equity-settled.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the above new and revised standards
and amendments will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHRRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBEIERIN + UAREFIR)

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) — continued

(B)

NEW/REVISED HKFRSS THAT HAVE BEEN ISSUED
BUT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE - continued
HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets.
Debt instruments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to hold assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows (the business model
test) and that have contractual terms that give rise
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding
(the contractual cash flow characteristics test)
are generally measured at amortised cost. Debt
instruments that meet the contractual cash flow
characteristics test are measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI") if the
objective of the entity’'s business model is both to
hold and collect the contractual cash flows and to sell
the financial assets. Entities may make an irrevocable
election at initial recognition to measure equity
instruments that are not held for trading at FVTOCI.
All other debt and equity instruments are measured at
fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL").

HKFRS 9 includes a new expected loss impairment
model for all financial assets not measured at FVTPL
replacing the incurred loss model in HKAS 39 and
new general hedge accounting requirements to
allow entities to better reflect their risk management
activities in financial statements.

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition,
classification and measurement requirements for
financial liabilities from HKAS 39, except for financial
liabilities designated at FVTPL, where the amount
of change in fair value attributable to change in
credit risk of the liability is recognised in other
comprehensive income unless that would create
or enlarge an accounting mismatch. In addition,
HKFRS 9 retains the requirements in HKAS 39
for derecognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHmRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBEIERIN + UARMEFIR)

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) — continued

(B)

NEW/REVISED HKFRSS THAT HAVE BEEN ISSUED
BUT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE - continued
HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments — continued

The directors of the Group has reviewed the Group’s
financial assets as at 31 December 2017 and
anticipates that the application of the expected credit
loss model of HKFRS 9 in the future will result in early
provision of credit losses which are not yet incurred
in relation to the Group’s financial assets and is not
likely to have other material impact on the results and
financial position of the Group based on an analysis of
the Group's existing business model.

The above assessments were made based on an
analysis of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities as at 31 December 2017 on the basis of
the facts and circumstances that existed at that
date. As facts and circumstances may change during
the period ending leading up to the initial date of
application of HKFRS 9, which is expected to be 1
January 2018, the assessment of the potential impact
is subject to change.

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with
customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue
recognition framework. The core principle of the
framework is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods and services.
HKFRS 15 supersedes existing revenue recognition
guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11
Construction Contracts and related interpretations.

HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5-step
approach to revenue recognition:

e Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

e Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in
the contract

e Step 3: Determine the transaction price

e Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to each
performance obligation

e Step b: Recognise revenue when each

performance obligation is satisfied
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHRRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBEIERIN + UAREFIR)

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) — continued

(B)

NEW/REVISED HKFRSS THAT HAVE BEEN ISSUED
BUT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE - continued

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with
customers — continued

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular
revenue related topics that may change the current
approach taken under HKFRS. The standard also
significantly enhances the qualitative and quantitative
disclosures related to revenue.

Amendments HKFRS 15 - Revenue from
Contracts with customers

The amendments to HKFRS 15 included clarifications
on identification of performance obligations;
application of principal versus agent; licenses of
intellectual property; and transition requirements.
Management has performed a detail assessment
and expects that the implementation of the HKFRS
15 would not result in any significant impact on the
Group's financial position and results of operations.
Meanwhile, there will be additional disclosure
requirement under HKFRS 15 upon is adoption.
HKFRS 15 is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2018 and earlier application is
permitted.

HKFRS 16 — Leases

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will
supersede HKAS 17 “Leases” and related
interpretations, introduces a single lessee accounting
model and requires a lessee to recognise assets
and liabilities for all leases with a term of more 12
months, unless the underlying asset is of low value.
Specifically, under HKFRS 16, a lessee is required to
recognise a right-of-use asset representing its right to
use the underlying leased asset and a lease liability
representing its obligation to make lease payments.
Accordingly, a lessee should recognise depreciation
of the right-of use asset and interest on the lease
liability, and also classifies cash repayments of the
lease liability into a principal portion and an interest
portion and presents them in the statement of cash
flows. Also, the right-of-use asset and the lease
liability are initially measured on a present value basis.
The measurement includes non-cancellable lease
payments and also includes payments to be made in
optional periods if the lessee is reasonably certain to
exercise an option to extend the lease, or to exercise
an option to terminate the lease. This accounting
treatment is significantly different from the lessee
accounting for leases that are classified as operating
leases under the predecessor standard, HKAS 17.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHmRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBEIERIN + UARMEFIR)

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) — continued

(B)

NEW/REVISED HKFRSS THAT HAVE BEEN ISSUED
BUT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE - continued
HKFRS 16 — Leases — continued

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor
continues to classify its leases as operating leases or
finance leases, and to account for those two types of
leases differently.

As set out in Note 28 below, the future aggregate
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating lease of the Group as at 31 December
2017 amounted to approximately HK$217,000. Based
on current leasing patterns, the Group expects the
adoption of HKFRS 16 as compared with the current
accounting policy would not significantly impact the
Group's financial performance but it is expected that
a certain portion of the operating lease commitments
would be recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position as right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 — Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration

HK (IFRIC)-Int 22 is set out in accordance with HKAS
21 "The Effect of Changes in Foreign Exchange
Rate"” requires an entity to record a foreign currency
transaction by applying the exchange rate at the date
of the transaction. HKAS 21 states that the date of
the transaction is the date on which the transaction
first qualifies for recognition in accordance
with HKFRSs. When an entity pays or receives
consideration in advance in a foreign currency, it
generally recognises a non-monetary asset or non-
monetary liability before the recognition of the related
asset, expense or income. HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 addresses
how to determine a date of the transaction for the
purpose of determining the exchange rate to use an
initial recognition of the related asset, expense or
income when an entity has received or paid advance
consideration in a foreign currency.

The Group is not yet in a position to state whether
they will result in substantial changes to the Group's
accounting policies and financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHRRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBEIERIN + UAREFIR)

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) — continued

(B)

NEW/REVISED HKFRSS THAT HAVE BEEN ISSUED
BUT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE - continued
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 — Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

The Interpretation supports the requirements of
HKAS 12, Income Taxes, by providing guidance over
how to reflect the effects of uncertainty in accounting
for income taxes.

Under the Interpretation, the entity shall determine
whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment
separately or together based on which approach
better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty.
The entity shall also assume the tax authority will
examine amounts that it has a right to examine and
have full knowledge of all related information when
making those examinations. If the entity determines
it is probable that the tax authority will accept an
uncertain tax treatment, then the entity should
measure current and deferred tax in line with its tax
filings. If the entity determines it is not probable,
then the uncertainty in the determination of tax is
reflected using either the “most likely amount” or
the “expected value"” approach, whichever better
predicts the resolution of the uncertainty.

4, BASIS OF PREPARATION

4.1

4.2

4.3

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and
Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to
as the "HKFRS") issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited.

BASIS OF MEASUREMENT
The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis.

FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION CURRENCY
The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi
("RMB"), which is same as the presentation currency
of the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHmRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BSHIERI © UMARETITR)

5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

5.1

5.2

5.3

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries. Inter-company transactions and
balances between group companies together with
unrealised profits are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of impairment on the asset
transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

SUBSIDIARIES

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company
is able to exercise control. The Company controls
an investee if all three of the following elements
are present: power over the investee, exposure, or
rights, to variable returns from the investee, and
the ability to use its power to affect those variable
returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in
any of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Revenue is
reduced for discounts, rebates and other similar
allowances.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when
the goods are delivered and titles have passed, at
which time all the following conditions are satisfied:

o the Group has transferred to the buyer the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of
the goods;

° the Group retains neither continuing

managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership nor effective
control over the goods sold;

o the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably;

° it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the transaction will flow to the
Group; and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHRRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBEIERIN + UAREFIR)

5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

5.3

54

REVENUE RECOGNITION - continued
o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect
of the transaction can be measured reliably.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the
applicable interest rate and rental income is accrued
on a time proportion basis over the lease term.

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Plant and equipment including electric equipment,
plant and machinery, motor vehicles and furniture
and equipment in the production or supply of goods,
or for administrative purposes, are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

The cost of plant and equipment includes its purchase
price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Plant and equipment are depreciated so as to write
off their costs net of expected residual value over
their estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis.
The useful lives, residual value and depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
the end of each reporting period. The useful lives are
as follows:

Electric equipment 3 years
Plant and machinery 10 years
Motor vehicles 4 years
Furniture and equipment 5 years

An asset is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if its carrying amount is higher
than the asset's estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sale
proceeds and its carrying amount, and is recognised
in profit or loss on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHmRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBEIERIN + UARMEFIR)

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

5.5

5.6

LEASING

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to lessee. All other leases
are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

The Group as lessee

The total rentals payable under the operating leases
are recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased
asset are consumed. Lease incentives received are
recognised as an integrated part of the total rental
expense, over the term of the lease.

INVENTORIES

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and
subsequently at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs
of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and
condition. Cost is calculated using the weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
~ e I R YR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBEIERIN + UAREFIR)

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

5.7

5.8

IMPAIRMENT OF OTHER ASSET

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of the following assets
to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss or
an impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

° Plant and equipment; and
o Prepaid lease payments
° Inventories

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount. Recoverable amount is the higher
of fair value, reflecting market conditions less costs
to sell, and value-in-use. In assessing value-in-use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessment of time value of
money and the risk specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest group of
assets that generate cash inflows independently (i.e.
a cash-generating unit (“"CGU")). As a result, some
assets are tested individually for impairment and
some are tested at CGU level.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, to
the extent that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately.

RESEARCH EXPENDITURE
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHmRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBEIERIN + UARMEFIR)

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

5.9

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at banks
and in hand as well as short term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three
months or less that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

SHARE CAPITAL

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital
is determined using the nominal value of shares that
have been issued. Any transaction costs associated
with the issuing of shares are deducted from share
premium (net of any related income tax benefit) to the
extent they are incremental costs directly attributable
to the equity transaction.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT

a) Financial assets
The Group classifies its financial assets at
initial recognition, depending on the purpose
for which the asset was acquired. Financial
assets are initially measured at fair value plus
transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition of the financial assets.
Regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognized on
trade date basis. A regular way purchase or
sale is a purchase or sale of a financial asset
under a contract whose terms require delivery
of the asset within the time frame established
generally by regulation or convention in the
marketplace concerned.

Loans and receivables

These are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They arise
principally through the provision of goods and
services to customers (trade receivables) and
also incorporate other types of contractual
monetary asset. Subsequent to initial
recognition, they are carried at amortised
cost using effective interest method, less any
identified impairment losses. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and includes fees
that are an integral part of the effective interest
rate and transaction cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHRRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBEIERIN + UAREFIR)

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
5.11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT - continued

b)

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group assesses, at the end of each
reporting period, whether there is any
objective evidence that financial asset is
impaired. Financial asset is impaired if there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result
of one or more events that has occurred after
the initial recognition of the asset and that
event has an impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset that can be
reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment
may include:

° Significant financial difficulty of the
debtor;

° A breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

o It becoming probable that the debtor

will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; and

° Significant changes in the technological
market, economic or environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor.

For loans and receivables

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss when there is objective evidence that
the asset is impaired, and is measured as
the difference between the asset’'s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the original effective interest rate.

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent
periods when an increase in the asset'’s
recoverable amount can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, subject to a restriction that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHmRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBEIERIN + UARMEFIR)

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
5.11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT - continued

c)

d)

e)

)

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the
liabilities were incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised costs are
initially measured at fair value, net of directly
attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including
bank borrowings, trade payables, other
payables and accruals and deposits received
and amount due to a director subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method. The related interest
expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the amortisation process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or financial liability and of allocating
interest income or interest expense for the
year ended 31 December 2017 and 2016. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts or
payments through the expected life of the
financial asset or liability, or where appropriate,
a shorter period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recorded at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset
when the contractual rights to the future
cash flows in relation to the financial asset
expire or when the financial asset has been
transferred and the transfer meets the criteria
for derecognition in accordance with HKAS 39.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
~ e I R YR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBEIERIN + UAREFIR)

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

5.11

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT - continued

f) Derecognition — continued
Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity
instruments to a creditor to settle a financial
liability in whole or in part as a result of
renegotiating the terms of that liability,
the equity instruments issued are the
consideration paid and are recognised initially
and measured at their fair value on the date the
financial liability or part thereof is extinguished.
If the fair value of the equity instruments
issued cannot be reliably measured, the equity
instruments are measured to reflect the fair
value of the financial liability extinguished. The
difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability or part thereof extinguished
and the consideration paid is recognised in
profit or loss for the year.

FOREIGN CURRENCY

Transactions entered into by the group entities in
currencies other than the currency of the primary
economic environment in which they operate(s)
(the “functional currency”) are recorded at the
rates ruling when the transactions occur. Foreign
currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated
at the rates ruling at the end of reporting period.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

INCOME TAXES
Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and
deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable
or disallowable for income tax purposes and is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHmRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BSHIERI © UMARETITR)

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

5.13

INCOME TAXES - continued

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and
the corresponding amounts used for tax purposes.
Except for goodwill and recognized assets and
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profits, deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates appropriate
to the expected manner in which the carrying amount
of the asset or liability is realised or settled and that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of reporting period.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except
when they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income in which case the taxes are
also recognised in other comprehensive income
or when they relate to items recognized directly in
equity in which case the taxes are also recognised
directly in equity.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
a) Defined contribution retirement plan

Pursuant to the relevant regulations of the
PRC government, the Group participates in
a central pension scheme operated by the
local municipal government (the “Scheme”),
whereby the subsidiary of the Company in
the PRC is required to contribute a certain
percentage of the basic salaries of its
employees to the Scheme to fund their
retirement benefits. The local municipal
government undertakes to assume the
retirement benefits obligations of all existing
and future retired employees of the subsidiary
of the Company. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the Scheme is to pay
the ongoing required contributions under the
Scheme. Contributions under the Scheme are
charged to profit or loss as incurred. There
are no provisions under the Scheme whereby
forfeited contributions may be used to reduce
future contributions.

EXEHBER-&

5.13

FREASRMIERERAAE | Z T —LFEHRS
China Shenghai Food Holdings Company Limited | Annual Report 2017

93

Frissi— &

BB IB T RAEM I RENE
ERBEREE  SERHBH
A AE & SR BT A S B 1 2 R B
R BRAEERTRERDIL
MOmERCEREERAR
S ERFTERRREREE
BERELERARRE - ELKR
HEERA B ERY G
R SH A HO0 30 B 1 E AV 1S
T HER o BT HIA TR E A
REEXBBENREEBEEZER
HEENBEH T AR RS
RO B AR ERMAH R

=
e

EERBABERRENHE
RAIMKRENERARERIEE
REREGR o M fis AN 55 [ BE 54T 5
ZERMEEEMNELDAZER
MEZERNA LK RRAIETS
B eI = ER -

PSRN BaEPER - MM
PTG T B2 70 EL fth 22 T MR A FE BB
MIEBEAR  EILBERT - W
BRREMEEKARER @ &
AT B R E RN R
HEHAH  EUHEBLAT > BIA
TMEENESER -

o

EEFA
a) REHRFRIRGE
BIEFPHBRFOEER
fl - REBEL2HEBMF
MR BT EER A KRR
Kestal ([sr28])
B - AR E 8
BRAEZREEEALRH
+METAEDLAGE
EHE R AIRHLIR IR
BRES - TR
I SRZE=EE = NN ]
BRARMMERA RAR
EREENRAKERNE
T - AEBEE@EFEH
W—ETRRBRIEEF
BIEHATEMER - 5HE
B 4 RO EE E R FE 1B 55
R o 8RR T &
ELBE - B8 et
AT AR A AR AL R o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHRRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBEIERIN + UAREFIR)

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

5.14

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS - continued

b) Short-term employee benefits
Short term employee benefits are employee
benefits (other than termination benefits)
that are expected to be settled wholly before
twelve months after the end of the annual
reporting period in which the employees
render the related service. Short term
employee benefits are recognised in the
year when the employees render the related
service.

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group identifies operating segments and
prepares segment information based on the
regular internal financial information reported to
the executive directors for their decisions about
resources allocation to the Group's business
components and for their review of the performance
of those components. The business components
in the internal financial information reported to the
executive directors are determined following the
Group's major product lines.

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the
directors assess segment profit or loss by gross profit
or loss as measured in Financial Information.

For the purpose of presenting geographical location
of the Group’s revenue from external customers and
the Group’s non-current assets, country of domicile
is determined by reference to the country where the
majority of the Company’s subsidiaries operate.

PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, which it is probable will result in an outflow of
economic benefits that can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
the existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits
is remote.

EXEHBE-#&

5.14

5.15

5.16
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBEIERIN + UARMEFIR)

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued 5. EXRSTBE-&

5.17 RELATED PARTIES 517 B@ERH
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: i —HBATEM—IE - Al
WAR R ERARE BB &
(a) A person or a close member of that person's (a) MWEBUTALT BlEZA
family is related to the Group if that person: +TEiiZ A THY TR A
SEBME
(i) has control or joint control over the (i) £ 8 ok £ B 4 &
Group; REHE
(ii) has significant influence over the Group; (ii) HAEEBEEK
or MEN
(i) is a member of key management (i) AAXREEFIAQ
personnel of the Group or the Company’s CIRSNGIR: V==
parent. EIREKE °
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the (b) (& E THAEMAEHE

following conditions apply:

(i) The entity and the Group are members
of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

(ii) One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of the employees
of the Group or an entity related to the
Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHRRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBEIERIN + UAREFIR)

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued 5. EXRETHE-&

5.17 RELATED PARTIES - continued 517 BERF &
(b) - continued (b) — &

(vij  The entity is controlled or jointly i) BEX(@FTHR

controlled by a person identified in (a). AT X H
Rz -

(vil A person identified in (a)(i) has (Vi) (a)(i) & PT 3% Bl &9
significant influence over the entity ATHERBEE
or is a member of key management AEEHNBZ
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of B (NZEREN
the entity). BRARNFEEE

(viii)  The entity, or any member of a group (vii) BEEXHEMBESE
of which it is a part, provides key B E [ K8 A A
management personnel services to the AEAREBRY KE
Group or to the Group's parent. E&AalREE

E2EBAER -
Close members of the family of a person are those E—AIHNEBRREKERTE
family members who may be expected to influence, A ERATHERETE
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with BEINREBEBERIZATEEN
the entity and include: EHRRBKE - B :
(i) that person's children and spouse or domestic (i) ZERATHTLZREE
partner; RREME
(i) children of that person's spouse or domestic (i) ZBATHEBSHIRE
partner; and HIEN T &
(i) ~ dependents of that person or that person’s (i) ZBATEHZBALH
spouse or domestic partner. EEAREFENZE

A e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHmRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBEIERIN + UARMEFIR)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and judgements concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
judgements that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below:

DEPRECIATION

The Group depreciates the plant and equipment in
accordance with the accounting policies stated in note 5.4.
The estimated useful lives reflect the directors’ estimates of
the periods that the Group intends to derive future economic
benefits from the use of these assets. The management
reassesses the estimated useful lives at the end of each of
the reporting date.

IMPAIRMENT OF RECEIVABLES

The management assesses impairment of receivables on a
regular basis. This estimate is based on the credit history of
the customers and debtors and current market conditions.
The management reassesses the impairment of receivables
at the end of each of the reporting date.

ESTIMATES OF CURRENT TAX AND DEFERRED TAX
Significant judgement is required in determining the amount
of the provision for tax and the timing of payment of the
related tax. Where the final tax outcomes are different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
periods in which such determination are made.

BEREFHEET R A B

ARBBEAEERREMEE - BF
BHIA & EAEER TREEHRNE
5 - SR {E B 2t i 31 0 2 BT B AT
Bk -

R BB AR B RS
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BA B AR (R 1
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weE

R E B 5. 4P 5 80 & 5T R R
FEREBEEHINE - EHERFHARRES
UAKEITEAEAZEFEERIARR
REMEM RN G - BEER
BEHESPRERNF GG ERSF
5 o

FE& W SR TR R (B

B ETE HRHERKIRRRE - B
AEHRIBE R P REB AREERRENU K
EHMOAEL - BEEERREHEEH
REFFEBUGRERIE

BB EAREER A MG

JRTE WA B 2 B8 K S AN AR R A TR B ]
BREHERHE - BREMBERA
RSN B TRAE - AEEZRE8Y
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHRRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBEIERIN + UAREFIR)

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
Revenue represents the net amounts received and
receivable for goods sold in the normal course.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purpose, the Group operates in one
business unit based on their products, and has one
reportable and operating segment: packaging and sales of
dried seafood, algae and fungi, seafood snacks and frozen
seafood. The board of directors of the Company, being
the chief operating decision maker, reviews monthly sales
reports to determine the selling price of their products and
monitors the operating results of its business unit for the
purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and
performance assessment.

INFORMATION ABOUT MAJOR CUSTOMERS

No customer contributed 10% or more of the Group's
revenue during the year ended 31 December 2017. (2016:
Nil)

INFORMATION ABOUT GEOGRAPHICAL AREAS
The Group’s sales by geographical areas, based on the
delivery destination of the goods as requested by the
customers, were all domestic and within the PRC.

The Group’s non-current assets other than financial

instruments mainly represent plant and equipment and
prepaid lease payments are located in the PRC.

OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES), NET

WA K EBE R
WasiE E R BT MEE MmN E WK E
WIS -

REDHER

REEME  AREREBEEMEE —E
EBEMN ABE—EA2HRELED
M BRRHENEBER  RRERK
RAREmM  BFAREERKBHRRD
ARAEEE(AREREERKEE)E
AEMHEERS  UBETHEREER
EREXBEMNELERE - FBItFD
BRAERDERRRFEHORTE -

ERIEEFHNESN
BE-FT—+tF+-A=+—HLF
B BEFEFAMASEKRIENI0%
FAE(ZF—RE: F) -

ERHENER
AEBRBERPERNAEHIE S
@ IRE S BEREEE A AEE R
R EIEA o
AEBBRESR T AUINIEREBEEE
2;2%&3@?%@%&%1%@5@1#@%
FRIE ©

Hit AR H bkt (B518) F8

2017 2016

—E—+F AN

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T AREFIT

Interest income on bank deposits IRITERF B A 575 279
Interest income on secured JE U A AR B R F B A

loan receivables (Note 19(i)) (MFzE19()) 68 -

Proceeds received from patent transfer B EREE IR PTEIE - 94

Rental income e WA 54 58

Exchange loss i 5 EsiE (649) =

Others Hh 147 4

Total FEE 195 435
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9. FINANCE COSTS 9. B 7 B AR
2017 2016
—EB—+tF —T-REF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%ET T ARETT
Interest charge on: LATIEE MM EMX

— Secured bank borrowings (Note) — G WRITERE) - 219
Total HEt - 219
Note:  The bank borrowings had been fully settled on 4 May 2016. Mz : ROTBKRER-B-R"FAANAEHK

H©E o
10. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 10. BRATEBIAIREF
Profit before income tax is arrived at after charging: BRETS B AT S F 2 Mk T3 %18
2017 2016
—E—tHF —F—R
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARETTT
Auditors’ remuneration ZE BN & 934 5
Amortization of prepaid lease payments B/ 18 & 2B 5 50 50
Costs of sales (Note) SHE AR (FF3E) 480,901 349,642
Research expenditure M 554 1,283
Depreciation of plant and equipment MWENEEITE 101 116
Operating lease rental in respect of: T RBEBHRELHEERS -

- Rented premises — AR 1,842 1,674
Listing expenses WX 16,669 9,012
Staff costs (including directors’ BIXRAN(BEESHES

emoluments — Note 13) —M3E13)

— Salaries and wages —HekTE 19,500 13,875

- Bonuses —1E4L 9,515 -

— Retirement scheme contribution —RREHEME R 2,562 2,192
Note:  Cost of sales are mainly comprised of cost of inventories recognised et HERAEROEERRMINFTHEK

as expenses, which amounting to RMB450,954,000 (2016: AR AR A450,954,0007T( —F — N &F -
RMB325,626,000). AR#325,626,0007T) °
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11.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11. FiBHEAxX
The amount of taxation in the consolidated statement of ReEEARERTHOBIESEIE
comprehensive income represents:
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARETT
Current tax e
Tax for the year FEREHIA 33,5616 23,633
Under-provision in respect of prior year BEFEBRETR 667 631
Deferred tax EEFIIR
Current year RNEE — _
Total HEt 34,183 24,264

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax ("EIT")
and Implementation Regulations of the EIT Law, the tax rate
of the Company's PRC subsidiaries is 25%.

Provision for the PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") for the
year ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 was made based
on the estimated assessable profits calculated in accordance
with the relevant income tax laws, and regulations applicable
to the subsidiaries operated in the PRC.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as
the Group had no assessable income arising in Hong Kong
for the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to
the profit before income tax per the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income as follows:

RIBC(PBBEABRRI(EEME
BOE) ) BB EPABBUAE RG] -
AATPEMERR OB ERS26% e

HE - ZT—+&K-_ZT—X F+-HA
=+ BUFENTFREMCEMEH ([
SN D BERBZERREPRL
EHTE A B H B BT B RUA D KRB
SHERTS A ERBUERIES -

HRAREEREE -T—+FR-_T—X
F+-_A=+—BIFEWEEE LR
BERBEH - B EREEFEH
{EL 4 -

FANMEHH X RS 2 E KRS R
SRR TS B AE A S BR LA T -

2017 2016

—E—+F —E-REF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARETT

Profit before income tax & FT 1584 Bl Vs 7 104,385 85,416
Tax thereon at domestic rates applicable  {&iE BB B EER A

to profit or loss in the jurisdictions BRI R E

concerned EOpE] 28,668 22,146

Under-provision in prior year BEFERETR 667 631
Tax effect of expenses not deductible TR BRI B B 2 Y

for tax purposes M E 4,993 1,637

Others =) (145) (50)

Income tax expense for the year FRME#MAX 34,183 24,264
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12.

AAREHTR)

BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE 12. BREXREEERRN
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%ET R ARETT
Profits Jis Al
Profit attributable to owners KREHEE ANEAL R F)
of the Company 70,202 61,152
2017 2016
ZE—tF TR
Number’000 Number’000
TR Fh%
Number of shares BRHEEE
Weighted average number TRz NAE T HEE
of ordinary shares (Note) (BR3E) 864,375 750,000
Note: Weighted average of 750,000,000 ordinary shares for the year ended i : BE-T—A"F+-A=+—HLHF

31 December 2016, being the number of shares in issue immediately
after the completion of capitalisation issue in June 2017 as detailed
in Note 24(g), deemed to have been issued throughout the year
ended 31 December 2016 and up to 17 July 2017, immediately
before the completion of the placing of the Company’s new shares.

Weighted average of 864,375,000 ordinary shares for the year ended
31 December 2017, includes the weighted average of 250,000,000
ordinary shares issued immediately after the completion of placing,
in addition to the aforementioned 750,000,000 ordinary shares for
the year ended 31 December 2016.

Diluted earnings per share were the same as the basic earnings per
share as the Group had no dilutive potential shares during the years
ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBEIERIN + UAREFIR)

13. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND 13. EEFHREEMS
EMOLUMENTS OF EMPLOYEES
DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION EEHM
Directors’ emoluments are as follows: BEEMW2HT
2017 —E—tF
Allowances
and other  Retirement
benefits scheme Total
Fees Salaries Bonuses inkind contributions emoluments
BHREM
we e T BURA  BAHEMR aye
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥ETR  ARETr  AR%Tr  ARETR  ARETR  ARETx
Executive directors: H1ES
Mr. Liu Rongru YRR - 655 4,325 - 9 4,989
Mr. Jiang Dehua Bt - 598 2,163 S 8 2,769
Mr. Lin Jiangtang WIREE - 486 1,298 = 10 1,794
- 1,739 1,186 - 27 9,552
Independent non-executive directors: BV IEH{TES :
Mr. Huang Xingluan BEERE 43 = = = = 43
Mr. Liu Dajin ARERE 43 - - - - 43
Ms. Cheng Shing Yan ML 65 - - - - 65
151 - - - - 151
Total @it 151 1,739 7,786 = 2 9,703
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13.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND

EMOLUMENTS OF EMPLOYEES - continued

13. ESFMREEMES &

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION - continued EEHM &
2016 —T—REF
Allowances
and other Retirement
benefits scheme Total
Fees Salaries Bonuses inkind  contributions  emoluments
Yy
ik ) Tt EMER  BAGEIER B
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTL ARETTL AREFTL AREFTL ARETT ARETT
Executive directors: H1ESE:
Mr. Liu Rongru Bt - 240 = = 9 249
Mr. Jiang Dehua BEELE - 180 = = 8 188
Mr. Lin Jiangtang WIRAEE - 121 - - 10 131
- 541 - - 27 568
Independent non-executive directors:  BUFH{TEE :
Mr. Huang Xingluan ERSLE - - - - - -
Mr. Liu Dajin ARERE = = = = = =
Ms. Cheng Shing Yan PEMt = = = = = =
Total @it - 541 - = 2 568

No director received any emoluments from Group as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office for the years ended 31
December 2017 and 2016. No director waived or agreed to
waive any emoluments for the years ended 31 December

2017 and 2016.

THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

The five highest paid individuals of the Group for the
years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 are analysed as

B2 ZT—+HFK-_FT—X~&+-A
Z+T—HLEFE  BEEEMAEEYK
BERBN € 1E BB B MAREE I MA
REBBHRE - SERF AR
B -HE_ZT—+FR_FT—RF+=
A=+—HLFE  BEEEWRESXR
BEWETAEE -

ANBEEHAL
HE_Z—tFEK-_F—X~F+=A
T HUEFEAERRANESHAL

followed: Kot T :
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—REF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE A
Directors = 3 2
Non-directors, the highest paid individual HE#IEEE AL 2 3
5 5
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13.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND 13.
EMOLUMENTS OF EMPLOYEES - continued

THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS - continued

Details of the remuneration of the above non-directors, the
highest paid individual for the year ended 31 December 2017

EESYyMREEME - &

EUBESHFALT &

B E—F—tEFER T —RE+=

A=1t—BILFEH&x

BEHIFEEAL

and 2016 are as follows: RE BT ¢
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—X
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET R ARET T
Salaries and other emoluments e REHME 2,809 923
Retirement scheme contribution RORETEIEER 24 30
2,833 953
The number of the highest paid non-directors fell within the MENFU TR ESHIEEE A+
following emolument band: AE
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE ANER
Nil to RMB1,000,000 =T AR¥1,000,0007T 1 3
RMB1,000,001 to RMB2,000,000 AR¥1,000,001 T2
AR®2,000,0007T - _
RMB2,000,001 to RMB3,000,000 AR #2,000,001 08
AR#3,000,0007T 1 =
2 &

For the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to any director or any
of the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of
office. There were no arrangements under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments for the years
ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

HE_Z—+tFRK-_F—XRF+=-HA
ZT—HULEFE  AEERERERE
E A &3 A T IR — A
®ERBBEMARER K IMALRE
B & r12E) - ERBFEABMAMFEE -
HE_Z—+tFEK=-_F—X~"F+=-A
Z T HULEFE  BEEEHRESRE
WEWEBULAI BN £ A2 HE -
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13. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND 13. EEFMREEME &
EMOLUMENTS OF EMPLOYEES - continued
SENIOR MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENTS SREEENS
Emoluments paid or payable to members of senior EffENESUINSREEERKEN
management who are not directors were within the B & F LA T AR

following bands:

2017 2016
—E—tE —E—RF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE AH
Nil to RMB1,000,000 T = AR¥1,000,0007T 3 4
RMB1,000,001 to RMB2,000,000 AR¥1,000,001E
AR ¥2 000,0007T = =
RMB2,000,001 to RMB3,000,000 AR¥2,000,00170E
AR #3,000,0007T 1 =
4 4
14. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. BWERXE
Furniture
Electric  Plant and Motor and
equipment machinery vehicles equipment Total
ENRE BERES AE EERRE @t

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT AREBTL ARETL ARETL ARETR

Cost: BRA
At 1 January 2016 and R-E-—~"E—HA—-8k
31 December 2016 —Z-R"%t+-A=+—H 118 70 320 241 749
Additions NG 5 - 30 = 35
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+=-A=+—H 123 70 350 241 784

Accumulated depreciation: Z:HfE :

At 1 January 2016 R-ZE—~"¥—HF—H 90 21 165 161 437
Charge for the year FRFTHR 9 7 71 29 116
At 31 December 2016 RZZ—R"E+-A=+—H 99 28 236 190 553
Charge for the year FRFHR 8 6 67 20 101
At 31 December 2017 = e e 107 34 303 210 654
Net book value: BREFE
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+tF+=A=+—H 16 36 47 31 130
At 31 December 2016 RZZ—R"E+ZA=+—H 19 42 84 51 196
The above items of plant and equipment are depreciated Ll KRR TR B R R E AR R
on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives and BEBZEGEAGFHEREINE -

after taking into account of their estimated residual values.
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15. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 15.

The Group's prepaid lease payments represented prepaid
operating lease payments for tidal flats in PRC. The lease
prepayments expensed in the profit or loss amounted to
approximately RMB50,000 for the years ended 31 December
2017 and 2016.

16. DEPOSITS PAID TO SUPPLIERS 16.

The balance represents the earnest money paid to the
fishermen for securing their long term supply of the raw
materials. The deposits are unsecured, interest-free and
the balances were subject to a repayable on demand clause
once the contracts are being terminated.

ANBEERR
AEBNBNEEFIAET EERNTE
MREHENK - BE-_T—tFR—
B-—A"FT_A=T+—HLEFE - R’E
BRIMERXMHEERNHBHABAR
#50,0007T °

INFHEBZES

REMRIE N TRRMES R BRI
FBHHEE  FHERE/BEERLS
B MARREN A KA LR 2SR
BB {EE -

17. INVENTORIES 17. ®E

2017 2016

—E—tF —EREF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T ARETF T

Raw materials =R R 20,927 16,593
Finished goods BURK Gh 20,648 14,998
41,575 31,591

At 31 December 2017, the carrying amount of inventories
carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value
amounted to RMB41,575,000 (2016: RMB31,591,000).
During the year, no impairment losses has been recognised
(2016: nil).

R-ZZE—+F+-A=1+—H ' &EAK
HA] IR EMEPAREETENE
HEAARE41,575,000( ZF—X
£ AR®31,591,0007T)  F£R » I
EERTABEBER(ZE—XR: T)-

FREASRMERERAT | ZE—tFERS
China Shenghai Food Holdings Company Limited | Annual Report 2017

106



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHmRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBEIERIN + UARMEFIR)

18.

TRADE RECEIVABLES 18. E S EWFEE
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREFIT
Trade receivables B 5 W EIE 97,914 74,533
Less: allowance for doubtful debt B REEEE = =
97,914 74,533

Based on the invoice dates, the ageing analysis of the
Group's trade receivables net of impairment provision is as

REZEAY  ARENE FEEHR
(FNERIBAE B ) BRI DAT LA TS

follows:
2017 2016
—E-tF  CTAF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARETT
0 - 30 days 0%30H 68,384 48,282
31 - 60 days 31260H 28,168 24,488
61 — 90 days 61290H 1,362 1,763
97,914 74,533
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18.

TRADE RECEIVABLES - continued

The credit term granted by the Group to its trade customers
is normally 30 days to 90 days. The ageing analysis of the
Group's trade receivables that are neither individually nor
collectively considered to be impaired is as follows:

18.

EZEWFIE &
AEEREEZEFEENEER &
AHI30290H - AEBEWEERISE
BERADRENE S ERZIENRE D
W -

2017 2016

—E—+F —E—RF

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR®T T ARBT T

Neither past due nor impaired e R B HA glom B 97,914 74,490
Past due for less than 3 months B D = (8 A = 43
97,914 74,533

The movement in the allowance for impairment of trade
receivables is as follows:

BIRMGRIERERENEESIT

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E-RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AREFTT

Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—B®EEE = 110
Impairment losses recognised B R EEE = =
Written off i gH - (110)

Carrying amount at 31 December

At 31 December 2016, trade receivables that are past due
nor impaired related to a number of customers for whom
there was no recent history of default. The management
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in
respect of these balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are still considered
fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade
receivables approximate their fair values.

Rt-—A=1+—H&NEEE

RIE—XRF+-_A=1+—H  #HEa
BINERE R E 5 e IR N IE B R 2 3T
WEHBRCHENELAR - SEEM
12 BEARZEEHIERRERE T
HREEEETEEREH R ZEEH
94548 A AT BB [B) » AN B & BL %
SERBEETMERR -

EERREFHRRFENREELZELR
FEBEE -
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19.

20.

DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 19. ®B&  BAARERHEMERRIE
RECEIVABLES

2017 2016
—E—+F —Z2—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETT
Secured loan receivable — Note (i) FEWE IR E R — BEE() 12,604 =
Amount due from a related party — Note (i) F&U 838 75 58 — M5 (ii) 234 234
Others Hth 1,129 3,415
13,967 3,649

(ii)

The balance represents a loan receivable and accrued interest
income from the loan receivable. On 12 December 2017, the
Company has lend HK$15 million (equivalent to RMB12,975,000)
to an independent third party at 10% interest per annum for a two-
month period. The Company has interest income on secured loan of
approximately HK$78,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB68,000)
for the year end 31 December 2017. On 2 February 2018 and 26
March 2018, the term of the secured loan has been further extended
and the balance has been subsequently settled on 28 March 2018.

The balance represents a rental deposit and rental prepayment paid
to a company, which was controlled by the major shareholder’s
spouse. The balance was unsecured, interest-free, and will be
repayable upon the end of lease term.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

At 31 December 2017, cash and cash equivalents in
the amount of RMB2,641,000 (2016: RMB31,000)
and RMB282,602,000 (2016: RMB109,951,000) are
denominated in HK$ and RMB respectively. The cash and
cash equivalent denominated in RMB are deposited in the
PRC in the ordinary course of business. RMB is not a freely
convertible currency and the remittance of funds out of
the PRC is subject to the relevant rules and regulations
of foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC
government.

20.

(i)

(i)

7 8 45 o T B W B SR R R B SR FE T
MERAX RZZT—tHF+=ZA+=
B AARHREFRI10% WBLE=F
BHAHMEAMIAEESTEERA
K #12,975,0007T) - BEZT—+t4F
+ZA=+—BLEE AARFER
BB F B URA L A78,00078 T (FHER
AR¥#68,0007T) - R=ZFT—NF=A
—HEZZE-—N\E=ZA=+H ' BI&
BERZHREBTERMERBEER =
Z—N\EFE=ZA=-+N\HBEE

B RER AT ERRREE
MARXNOESKRERESEANK
B RBARBREER 28 RARE
HE MR

ReRBESEEY
A—E—+F+_-_A=+—H8" &85
AR#2641,0000t( ZF—7RF : A
R#31,00070) & AR #¥282,602,000
TT(ZZF—XF : AR¥109,951,000
TL)DRABTRARKE £
¥BBREF  UARETERNIRE KR
CEEMERRHR - AREIWIETTH
ARBENEEREESELPBIEINT
R B ER AT A8 4 2 #E B SN B Y A9 A8 Bl
SEIRFTIRR o

HEFSARERARAT | — T LEERE
China Shenghai Food Holdings Company Limited | Annual Report 2017

109



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHRRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBEIERIN + UAREFIR)

21. TRADE PAYABLES 21. EZEFMARE
2017 2016
—B—tF B T
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETT
Trade payables B 5B RIE 61,056 39,715
The credit terms of trade payables vary according to the BB ENZIENEE R FEAE L E
terms agreed with different suppliers, normally 30 days. HHENBERMER TR @ — & AH
Based on the receipt of services and goods, which normally 30H - RIF—REZIEHBHERNR
coincided with the invoice dates, the ageing analysis of the BREGBERBEH  AXEER-Z—+
Group's trade payables as at 31 December 2017 and 2016 EN—FT—RNF+-_A=+—HHNEH
are as follows: FERT BRI BRES AT 0T ¢
2017 2016
—B—tF ZT R
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBTFIT
0 — 30 days 0%30H 61,056 39,715
The trade payables are short-term and hence the carrying Z D ENFIE ARG EIE » Atk AEE
values of the Group's trade payables are considered a B RN FENRAEHEATFENE
reasonable approximate of fair value. R PUE -
22. ACCRUALS, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND OTHER 22. EIER CHWRERHMENR

PAYABLES I8
2017 2016
—E—tE TR
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREET T
Amounts due to shareholders (Note) FE AR R 5K 8 (M) - 18,194
Others Hih 3,602 2,211
3,602 20,405

Note: The amounts due to shareholders were unsecured, interest-free,
and repayable on demand. The balances have been capitalised upon
listing.

M : BNRRRBESEENR RERARE
KEE - RFRBHBEN EMRBETER -
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23.

24.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES 23. BKREFEE
The employees of the Group in the PRC are members of AEERFENEES STERTEEN
the state-managed retirement benefit schemes operated BEXREEENRENFENKE - AEE
by the PRC government. The Group’'s PRC companies are MR R BIREEHOE TE DL
required to contribute certain percentage of their payroll to FERARE AT 2 - IR EEER
the retirement benefit schemes to fund the benefits. The HNESE - REBEBENREIEZIRME
only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement —BERBREFTEEL TR R
benefit schemes is to make the required contributions under
the schemes.
SHARE CAPITAL 24, B
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
Number Amount Number Amount
#E &5 B k-
Notes ‘000 RMB’000 '000 RMB’'000
FsE TR AR¥®FR T AREFT
JETE
Initial authorised share R
capital upon incorporation  #47AE R (a) 3,800 322 3,800 322
Subdivision of share capital RS (c) 34,200 = = =
Increase in share capital MNE (LB
upon capitalisation [N (d) 9,962,000 87,090 = =
10,000,000 87,412 3,800 322
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24. SHARE CAPITAL - continued 24. BAR—-E
2017 2016
—E—+F ZE—REF
Number Amount Number Amount
2 E -l £ gE! KX
Notes ‘000 RMB’000 '000 RMB’000
B s TR AR%®Txn T AREFT
Issued and fully paid: BEITRAR
At 1 January n—HA—H - - = =
Issued of one ordinary share R s 18317
upon incorporation — & B (a) = = - -
Allotment of shares AR 2R 15 (b) - - - =
Subdivision of shares & ¥ (c) 1 = = -
Issue of ordinary shares PR EFETT
upon capitalisation of BARGEITERR
shareholders’ loan (e) 200 2 - -
Issue of ordinary shares NER 1% 3TT
upon capitalisation T3 A () 749,799 6,555 - -
Issue of ordinary shares PECE RN 1B 21T
upon placing of shares Lk (9) 250,000 2,166 = =
At 31 December ) = s =} 1,000,000 8,723 = =
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24.

SHARE CAPITAL - continued

(a)

(e)

(f)

(9)

The Company was incorporated on 8 January 2016 in the Cayman
Islands with an authorised share capital of HK$380,000 (equivalent
to RMB321,636) divided into 3,800,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each. Upon incorporation, one share of par value HK$0.1 was allotted
and issued fully-paid to a subscriber, which was then transferred to a
shareholder at par.

On 8 January 2016, 99 shares were allotted and issued all credited as
fully-paid to shareholders.

On 21 June 2017, each share of HK$0.1 was subdivided into 10
shares of HK$0.01 each. The number of authorized share capital has
been increased from 3,800,000 to 38,000,000 while the number of
issued and fully paid share capital has been increased from 100 to
1,000.

On 21 June 2017, the authorised share capital of the Company
was increased from HK$380,000 (equivalent to RMB321,636) to
HK$100,000,000 (equivalent to RMB87,411,432) by the creation of
9,962,000,000 ordinary shares of par value HK$0.01 each.

On 22 June 2017, 200,000 shares were allotted and issued all
credited as fully-paid to shareholders in consideration of the
capitalisation of loans in the amount of HK$22,807,000 (equivalent
to RMB19,940,474) owing by the shareholders. The sum of
HK$2,000 (equivalent to RMB1,749) representing the par value of
the ordinary shares of the Company, were credited to the Company’s
share capital. The remaining sum of HK$22,805,000 (equivalent to
RMB19,938,725) were credited to share premium account.

Pursuant to written resolutions passed on 22 June 2017, conditional
upon the share premium account of the Company having sufficient
balance, or otherwise being credited by way of global offering, the
directors were authorised to allot and issue a total of 749,799,000
shares credited as fully paid at par by way of capitalisation of the sum
of HK$7,497,990 (equivalent to RMB6,555,492) standing to the credit
of the share premium account of the Company.

On 18 July 2017, 250,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of
the Company were issued at a price of HK$0.66 by way of placing.
On the same date, the Company’s ordinary shares were listed on
the Stock Exchange. The proceeds of HK$2,500,000 (equivalent
to RMB2,166,075) representing the par value of the ordinary
shares of the Company, were credited to the Company’s share
capital. The remaining proceeds of HK$162,500,000 (equivalent
to RMB140,794,875), before issuing expenses of approximately
HK$18,458,529 (equivalent to RMB15,993,023), were credited to
share premium account.

24.

Bﬁ¢ - I‘E

(a)

(f)
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ARRR=ZFE—X"F—ANBEHES
BEEMK - AT RA A380,0008
T(HERARYSI216367L) ' H A
3,800,000 f% & AR EI 1B 0.01 7 T ) ¥ A
f% o REEMAZE - —IREER0IET
AR D A R IR Rl 2 R BT T
—ERBA BEEEDEESET 2R
%o

RZZE—XRE—ANB » 99RBMHAA
RRIVER R 7 R B R B 1T TR -

R-_E—tFXA-+—B SBREE
0.1 BTN » A100 FEE0.0175
TLHIAR1D o SETERR A E B F13,800,000
[i% % 2= 38,000,000 % - M2 %47 R &2
FEAHI BB IR 100/% 32 %= 1,0000% °

R-ZE—tEXA-+—8  ARQAE
38 12 3% 9,962,000,000 f% & A% ™ € 0.01
78 T B i AR A% 0% E AR AR B 380,000
BT (HEE RN ARMS321,6367T) # M
% 100,000,000 8 T (HHE R AR
87,411,4327T) °

R-ZZB—+EXA-+-H  BRIEER
¢ K %£17200,000 BX A BR 71 15 41 2 B9 A%
7 REABRMAIRK 222,807,000%8
T (HENAR19,940,47470) E R
B - 2,000 GHERARK1,749
JE) 2 BB AR RARBRAMARDRFE
BAXTEME - # 722,805,000 7T (A% R
AR19,938,72570 ) it AR HEERE ©

BRER-ZZ—tFNA-Z+-HBEBXN
EERZR  FARARMBERE S
FEEHBABIREEMEGERER -
EFEREEBBARARMEERD
HYHERREE 7,497,990/ L (HEER AR
6,555,492 ) Bt - B REITE K
749,799,000 % 1% E 1B A BR 7 1 4% & A%
K

R—_TE—+EtA+NA - AQF
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LA IS B AL E 12 0.66 8 7T B B 15 B
TeRAA  ANARAEERNE T
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R AR®¥2166,0757L) it AKX A
ARAMARR L BIEE - MK E
77 59 X #918,458,529 3% 7T (48 & B A
R % 15,993,023 7T ) AT B 82 T FT 15 X
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25.

HOLDING COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

ZERA B MBI R

POSITION
2017 2016
—E—tF ZTRF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
o= ARET T ARET T
NON-CURRENT ASSET FRBEE
Investment in subsidiary RSB RAKE 26 - -
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Prepayment and other receivables T8 A5 R IE Fe EL A FE K IE 12,622 2,426
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE U B B A B FRIE 104,386 —
Cash and cash equivalents HehReEEY 2,571 =
119,579 2,426
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Accruals, deposits received and JEETER Bl Rk
other payables E fb fE S 5RI8 1,052 9
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEfTB B A BIZRIE 11,496 11,129
12,548 11,138
NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) ZFRBIEE (&%) 107,031 (8,712)
NET ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) BEE (8F) 107,031 (8,712)
CAPITAL AND RESERVE BEXRL#E
Share capital fi& s 24 8,723 —
Reserves His 98,308 (8,712)
TOTAL EQUITY/(DEFICIT) MR (B4 107,031 (8,712)
On the behalf of the directors RERES

Mr. Liu Rongru
BlgmkE
Director

EE

BT

N ==

AR ontt

Mr. Jiang Dehua
BEERE

Director

EE
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26. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARY 26. RMIBARNRE
Place of
incorporation and  Issued and fully % of ownership Principal
Name of subsidiary operation paid share capital interest activities
ME AR BB AMRIREE Y SRTRAZKRAK BEER FTEEK
2017 2016
ZB-tF C—TF
Billion Bond Holdings British Virgin US$1 Directly Directly  Investment
Limited Islands 100% 100% holding
BRARLA HBRUHS Ev HERE BEERE REER
100% 100%
New Lead Worldwide Hong Kong HK$1 Indirectly Indirectly  Investment
Limited 100% 100% holding
FARKARDE BB 1757 H#EEsE RERE REZFR
100% 100%
Xiamen Wofan Foodstuff ~ The People’s RMB91,066,872 Indirectly Indirectly  Packaging and
Company Limited Republic of China 100% 100% sale of seafood
products
EFAERMBERAT R AR HEME AR¥91,066,8727  BEHE REFE BRERHEEEER
100% 100%
Fujian Wofan Foodstuff The People's RMB 10,000,000 Indirectly Indirectly  Packaging and
Company Limited Republic of China 100% 100% sale of seafood
products
BEEAXERMERRR FEARKLME AR®10,000,0000t  EERSE RERHE BREREESER
100% 100%

FEERMIZERARARA | ZE—tFERE
China Shenghai Food Holdings Company Limited | Annual Report 2017
115



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHRRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBEIERIN + UAREFIR)

27. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 27. BEIFXRS
(A) Saved as disclosed elsewhere in these financial (A) BREVBERRANEFAFEEE
statements, during the year, the Group entered into G - RNER - REEBEFEN

RIMATR S »

the following transactions with related parties.

Related party identity

and relationship Type of transaction 2017 2016
BER SO RER XZER —E—+F AN
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREFTT
Xiamen Yehong Foodstuffs Rental expense
Company Limited*, — cost of sales
A company, which was MERX —HEKAK 119 77
controlled by the controlling
shareholder’s spouse Rental expenses
EFEARMBRAR - administrative expenses
—HHRZERRRNRSEHN LR AEMRY —THBAX 79 51
198 128
Fujian Quanzhou Dietary Other income
Condiment Company Limited*, H bzt
A company, which was controlled
by the controlling shareholder
BRERNTRAWKRE
BRAHRAT
— R AR AR R ) A B - 94
Mr. Liu Rongjian* Purchase — cost of sales
Cousin of Mr. Liu Rongru (Note)
ElESE s BB — IHE R (T EE)
Bl mMEERE RSB 747 978
Mr. Liu Rongzhong* Purchase — cost of sales
Cousin of Mr. Liu Rongru (Note)
Bl Bt REE — SHERA (M)
BIRIMSEENE RS 1,013 1,212
* The English name is translated for identification purpose
only.
Note:  The directors confirm that the above purchase transactions fsE : FEEWRLARBRISIRESE

are entered into with trading terms similar to those with

third parties.
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27. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS - continued

(B)

COMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT
PERSONNEL

The remuneration of directors for the year are set out
below:

27. BAELIRSZ-E
(B) EEEBAEHMH

BEERAFEZFHESNWT

2017 2016

—E—+F —E—RF

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR¥T T AREFT

Short-term benefits GHBRE A 9,676 541
Contribution to retirement EIRERIFH 2R

benefit scheme 27 27

Total e 9,703 568

The emoluments of senior management for the year
are set out below:

BREEBRAFEFMNOT

2017 2016

—E—+F —E—RF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETIT

Short-term benefits HEIE A 2,949 834
Contribution to retirement RIREFIFT B3R

benefit scheme 41 39

Total @t 2,990 873
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28. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 28. REHEHRE
THE GROUP AS LESSEE REBEEREEA
Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable BHEYEZ TR RRIKESHLA Z KK
operating leases in respect of rented premises are payable ENNZERENZTET :
as follows:
2017 2016
—E—+F ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBT T
Within one year —FR 217 424
In the second to fifth year, inclusive F_ERF(REERERT) = 107
217 531
The Group leases a number of premises under operating NEBRBKEHOBE — X5 -
leases. The leases run for an initial period of one (2016: one) SERNUS B —F (=T —KE
year. —4F) o
THE GROUP AS LESSOR AEBERHAA
During the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2017 rental HE_ST—RERKR_FE—+F+ A
income were RMB58,000 and RMB54,000 respectively. =+—HIEE  r HeWASRAAR
#58,0007T & A R#54,0007T °
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted NAREHAKR  AEFEBPLEIILES
with tenants for the following future minimum lease 4  UTARRKREEREN :
payments:
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBT T
Within one year —FRX 54 54
In the second to fifth year, inclusive F_ERF(BPIEEEMTE) 143 197
197 251
29. COMMITMENTS 29. EiE
2017 2016
—E—tE —E—REF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Commitments for research and TR IE B AAHE
development project - 500
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHmRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBEIERIN + UARMEFIR)

30.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND
PROCEDURES

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the entities
in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
net of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital,
reserves and retained profits, respectively.

The directors of the Company reviews the capital structure
on a continuous basis taking into account the cost of capital
and the risk associated with the capital. The Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new shares issue and share buy-back as well as
the issue of new debts or redemption of existing debt, if
necessary.

Management regards total equity as capital. The amount
of capital as at 31 December 2016 and 2017 amounted to
approximately RMB155,586,000 and RMB370,977,000,
respectively, which the management considers as optimal
having considered the projected capital expenditures and
the projected strategic investment opportunities.

30.

EXEERERER
AEEERBHERAABRAEEANE

BReBERERE  ARERBLER

KB EEHRIARERSRRER -

AEEMENGEBRERFR (AR
BeRREEEY) RARREE NE
HERE (D RIBEEBITRA - FE R
REEH]) o

BRANER - AR EENER - Af
B E BRI - BT KB
Bty - AR EITH IR E DR A EIR
(WEFE) UWFEHEBRBERERS -

EEEEREABEEAER BT
—NEER-_E—+F+-_A=+—8"
ERGFED BI#H AR E155,586,0007T
& AR#370,977,0007T ' BIREEBLKE
BIEAEAAS RIBAIKEIEE# e
% REERSEHKEEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHRRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBEIERIN + UAREFIR)

31.

32.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 31. REJEINEHEERSRARS
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY M=
The following table shows the carrying amount of financial TREVSRMEENABENERERDE :
assets and liabilities:
2017 2016
—E—tE —E—REF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREET T
Financial assets SREE
Loans and receivables B R EWGRIE
- Cash and cash equivalents —HeRRESZEEY 285,243 109,982
— Trade and other receivables — B 5 REMmEWFIE 117,042 77,528
402,285 187,510
Financial liabilities =K
Amortised cost BSHA AR
- Trade and other payables —B S REMERNKIE 64,614 60,090
(A)  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS NOT MEASURED AT (A) YHFRAFEFENEHMIE
FAIR VALUE
Financial instruments not measured at fair value WHEATFEFENERITA
include bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents, BREETHER  RekBeH
trade and other receivables, trade and other payables By - - E5REMEKFIE -
and interest-bearing borrowings. B 5 & EH A JE A 5B R AT B G
jé‘f o
Due to their short term nature, the carrying value HREMEESEY #1777
of bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents, trade RRERREEEY  EBH
and other receivables, trade and other payables LEMERGE BSREM
approximates fair value. ERNRENEEAEYEESS
BEMAFERES -
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 32. FMBEREEBENRBEX

AND POLICIES

The Group's major financial instruments include trade
receivables, other receivables, bank balances and cash,
trade payables and other payables.

Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out
below. The directors of the Company manage and monitor
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

FEENTESRTABIEE HEKR
B~ HEWER - RITEHRERES
B 5 PN SRR N B A FE T FROR

ZETRTANFBEREMEARKE -
HZEZLMTAERNARBRENXE
B EERRMERBDESER - BRI
ARR R R BERE ST - AR
RAESERLERZFER - UERR
BB M E e iE S i
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
~ e B R YR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBEIERIN + UARMEFIR)

32.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES - continued
(A) INTEREST RATE RISK

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing
assets and liabilities, the Group’'s income and
operating cash flows are substantially independent of

changes in market interest rate.

(B) CREDIT RISK

At the end of reporting period, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial
loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties arising from the
carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated

statements of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the directors of
the Company have delegated a team responsible
for determination of credit limits, credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action are taken to recover overdue debts.
In addition, the directors of the Company review
the recoverable amount of each individual trade
receivable at the end of the reporting period to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the credit risk of the

Group is significantly reduced.

The credit risk of the Group is concentrated on trade
receivables from the Group's five largest customers
at 31 December 2016 and 2017 amounting to
RMB29,486,000 and RMB37,516,000, respectively,
and accounted for 40% and 38% of the Group's total
trade receivables. In order to minimise the credit risk,
the directors of the Company continuously monitor
the level of exposure by frequent review of the credit
evaluation of the financial condition and credit quality
of its customers to ensure that prompt actions will be

taken to lower exposure.

32.

HEEREERNRBE-&
(A)  RIRER

MRAEE Y S A B AR
REE - 7 U A RS
BeRBRA FARE A S X

EHYE -
(B) RFEAR

RBEHR  AEERBH S
REEBEITEEME N EBBENX
MBRANEAEERRK
BHMBARRRKMHEIEE #

REMEENKREE -

i%ﬁﬁﬁ%@ﬁ'$@?

EECETEYE AR

@%‘%E&ﬁ&ﬁ@%%
o ARERRERETES WD
ARAEE
WREHE HRUFIARRE
LA BE 4R 3L
THKREEBERRED ﬂ@%

BEREIE © UL
HI R & AT g (3 & 2

Beopllt  RRAIEFR
UARIEREAEENEER

—RNFERZZ

:I]]%{

>
%FHMI

m -2
EHU

i
B E 5 ik 5

N 5

37,516,000 7T

EEREEERR

RARRRETTERURER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHRRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBEIERIN + UAREFIR)

32.

(C)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 32. MXEREEENRBE-#&
AND POLICIES - continued
LIQUIDITY RISK (C) RBEZEMR
Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management KRB ESTHRERDESRER
rests with the directors of the Company, which EENRKET  BEEEL
has built an appropriate liquidity risk management HEHRBERAREREE
framework for the management of the Group's BNUEEAREEMER - F
short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity HERBHESUALRHESE
management requirements. The Group manages BETE ASBEHEZTHORE
liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves and HRIETHE  URBESE
banking facilities. Bz o
The following table details the Group’s remaining TRFWAREEEITESHRE
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial BEMRHKEOIEA - ZXR
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on BAEBRRAKERERE
the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities BremBERMBBRBEESRE
based on the earliest date on which the Group can be WiE - BREMNEREXERER
required to pay. The table includes both interest and EoMAERRERZEIHNEM
principal cash flows. To the extent that interest flows o OABBREeEESREHR
are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived K& BRF 5T E -
from current interest rate at the end of each reporting
period.
2017 —E—tF
Total
contractual Within
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or
amount cash flow on demand
BHRRER ER—FR
REE HERELE IREREE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARBT T ARBT T
Non-derivatives: FTETHR
Trade payables B SRR 61,056 61,056 61,056
Accruals, deposits received fEs TR - BldRE
and other payables R E o JE A 5RIR 3,558 3,558 3,558
64,614 64,614 64,614
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHmRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBEIERIN + UARMEFIR)

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES - continued
(C) LIQUIDITY RISK - continued

32. HiIBEREEENREKX-&
(C) RBEZEAR-&

2016 —E-XRF
Total
contractual Within
Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or
amount cash flow on demand
BHIREEE BAR—FA
REE HERELE HREREE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETFT ARETT
Non-derivatives: FEPTETA
Trade payables 2 5N FIA 39,715 39,715 39,715
Accruals, deposits received FEsEE - 2R
and other payables R E At &SRR 20,375 20,375 20,375
60,090 60,090 60,090

(D) CURRENCY RISK
The Group mainly operated in the PRC with most
of the transactions settled in RMB and did not have
significant exposure to risk resulting from changes in
foreign currency exchange rates.

33. APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
The consolidated financial statements for each of the year
ended 31 December 2017 were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 29 March 2018.

(D) E¥ERE
AEEBTENFELE K%
BRXGUARBHEE - AU E
AN EEXREHEYNE
RER

33. H#EGZEMBEHRE
BE-_E—t+tF+-_A=1+—HILEE

MEANEREHEFTAR -2 —N\F
= A=+ N B RERTIE -
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FOUR-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

MFHMBREE
A summary of the results and assets, liabilities and equity of the ARNEBZFFINEANBEE 2 £EHEE A&
Group for the last four financial years is depicted below: REDZBEYRET -
RESULTS E
Year ended 31 December
+TZA=t-ALFE
2017 2016 2015 2014

“E-tF ZT-f TR CZT-IF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  AREBTRT ARETT  ARETR

Revenue [ON 664,407 468,039 366,968 204,847
Cost of sales HEKK (480,901) (349,642) (272,862) (156,944)
Gross profit E5 163,506 118,397 94,106 47,903
Other income and other gains HAWA R B bz 195 435 an (157)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDEER (23,806) (17,838) (14,547) (8,536)
Administrative expenses THER (34,912) (14,039) (2,707) (1,851)
Other expenses HMER (598) (1,320) (1,012) (274)
Finance costs BEKAE - (219) (1,028) (1,313)
Profit before income tax BRETEB AR 104,385 85,416 75,223 35,772
Income tax expense EHAX (34,183) (24,264) (19,379) (9,031)
Profit for the year attributable to AARREE AESFREF

owners of the Company 70,202 61,152 55,844 26,471
Other comprehensive income Htt2EBA
[tems that may be classified subsequently ~ E{&Js¢E#f 7 E 182

to profit or loss: HIBE -

- Exchange differences arising from —REBINEBEEN

translation of foreign operations fERZER (1,719) (804) = =

Other comprehensive income for the year ~ FREMEERA (1,719) (804) - -

Profit and total comprehensive income ~ AAREEABLEEREFR

for the year attributable to ZEBRALE
owners of the Company 68,483 60,348 55,844 26,471
Earnings per share FREF
- basic and diluted (RMB) —EAREE(ARE) 0.0812 0.0815 0.0745 0.0353
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 5E  AEkER
As at 31 December
Rt=A=+-H
2017 2016 2015 2014
“g-tf C—B-AFf C—F-1f C—B-@F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARETFT ARETT AREFT
Total Assets BEMRE 444,958 222,630 156,967 131,625
Total Liabilities BERE 73,981 67,044 55,929 66,431
Total Equity s 370,977 155,586 101,038 65,194
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